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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                     to                     .

Commission file number: 1-32381

HERBALIFE LTD.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Cayman Islands 98-0377871
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)
P.O. Box 309GT

Ugland House, South Church Street

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

(213) 745-0500

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§
232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer ¨  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

Number of shares of registrant�s common shares outstanding as of April 29, 2015 was 92,413,403.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

March 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

(In millions, except share and
par value amounts)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 715.5 $ 645.4
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4.0 (2015) and $1.9
(2014) 86.8 83.6
Inventories 335.0 377.7
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 191.8 186.1
Deferred income tax assets 99.1 100.6

Total current assets 1,428.2 1,393.4

Property, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $404.9
(2015) and $393.2 (2014) 356.7 366.7
Deferred compensation plan assets 29.0 27.4
Other assets 147.9 152.8
Deferred financing costs, net 20.2 22.0
Marketing related intangibles and other intangible assets, net 310.4 310.4
Goodwill 96.5 102.2

Total assets $ 2,388.9 $ 2,374.9

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 64.8 $ 72.4
Royalty overrides 218.6 251.0
Accrued compensation 76.1 69.6
Accrued expenses 255.2 252.1
Current portion of long-term debt 419.4 100.0
Advance sales deposits 82.8 70.0
Income taxes payable 52.0 59.7

Total current liabilities 1,168.9 874.8
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, net of current portion 1,393.4 1,711.7
Deferred compensation plan liability 44.1 42.9
Deferred income tax liabilities 16.8 15.3
Other non-current liabilities 66.9 64.6

Total liabilities 2,690.1 2,709.3

CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS� DEFICIT:
Common shares, $0.001 par value; 1.0 billion shares authorized; 92.5 million
(2015) and 92.2 million (2014) shares outstanding 0.1 0.1
Paid-in-capital in excess of par value 414.1 409.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (128.2) (78.2) 
Accumulated deficit (587.2) (665.4) 

Total shareholders� deficit (301.2) (334.4) 

Total liabilities and shareholders� deficit $ 2,388.9 $ 2,374.9

See the accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2015
March 31,

2014
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Product sales $ 1,028.3 $ 1,156.1
Shipping & handling revenues 77.1 106.5

Net sales 1,105.4 1,262.6
Cost of sales 215.4 251.2

Gross profit 890.0 1,011.4
Royalty overrides 323.0 381.8
Selling, general & administrative expenses 431.4 502.1

Operating income 135.6 127.5
Interest expense, net 21.5 14.9
Other expense, net 2.3 3.2

Income before income taxes 111.8 109.4
Income taxes 33.6 34.8

NET INCOME $ 78.2 $ 74.6

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.95 $ 0.78
Diluted $ 0.92 $ 0.74
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 82.3 95.4
Diluted 84.6 100.8
Dividends declared per share $ �  $ 0.30

See the accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2015
March 31,

2014
(In millions)

Net income $ 78.2 $ 74.6
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of income taxes of $(1.9) and $(0.1) for the
three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (54.9) (2.2) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives, net of income taxes of $0.6 and $(0.1) for the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively 5.2 (0.4) 
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale investments, net of income taxes of $(0.2) and
$(0.1) for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (0.3) (0.1) 

Total other comprehensive loss (50.0) (2.7) 

Total comprehensive income $ 28.2 $ 71.9

See the accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

4

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 8



Table of Contents

HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended

March 31,
2015

March 31,
2014

(In millions)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 78.2 $ 74.6
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 22.9 21.3
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements (2.5) (3.2) 
Share-based compensation expenses 11.1 11.0
Non-cash interest expense 12.2 7.2
Deferred income taxes 1.3 (2.3) 
Inventory write-downs 4.9 11.0
Unrealized foreign exchange transaction (gain) loss (18.3) 3.4
Foreign exchange loss from Venezuela currency devaluation 32.6 86.1
Impairments and write-downs relating to Venezuela currency devaluation 3.7 3.2
Other 4.6 1.3
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables (14.4) (18.0) 
Inventories 15.0 14.2
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10.8 (23.8) 
Other assets (6.2) (5.2) 
Accounts payable (1.1) 6.2
Royalty overrides (23.0) (3.7) 
Accrued expenses and accrued compensation 22.5 (12.5) 
Advance sales deposits 16.3 17.4
Income taxes (10.6) (0.9) 
Deferred compensation plan liability 1.1 3.3

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 161.1 190.6

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (22.8) (58.5) 
Investments in Venezuelan bonds �  (3.2) 
Other 6.1 �  

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (16.7) (61.7) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
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Dividends paid �  (30.4) 
Dividends received �  3.4
Payments for Capped Call Transactions �  (123.8) 
Proceeds from senior convertible notes �  1,150.0
Principal payments on senior secured credit facility and other debt (25.0) (18.8) 
Issuance costs relating to long-term debt and senior convertible notes �  (28.9) 
Share repurchases (9.0) (694.5) 
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 2.5 3.2
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and sale of stock under employee stock purchase
plan 0.4 0.1

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (31.1) 260.3

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (43.2) (100.3) 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 70.1 288.9
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 645.4 973.0

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 715.5 $ 1,261.9

See the accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. Organization

Herbalife Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempt limited liability company, or Herbalife, was incorporated on April 4, 2002.
Herbalife Ltd. (and together with its subsidiaries, the �Company�) is a global nutrition company that sells weight
management, targeted nutrition, energy, sports & fitness, and outer nutrition products. As of March 31, 2015, the
Company sold its products to and through a network of 4.1 million independent members, or Members, which
included 0.3 million in China. In China, the Company sells its products through retail stores, sales representatives,
sales officers and independent service providers. The Company reports revenue in six geographic regions: North
America; Mexico; South and Central America; EMEA, which consists of Europe, the Middle East and Africa; Asia
Pacific (excluding China); and China.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial information of the Company has been prepared in accordance
with Article 10 of the Securities and Exchange Commission�s, or the SEC, Regulation S-X. Accordingly, as permitted
by Article 10 of the SEC�s Regulation S-X, it does not include all of the information required by generally accepted
accounting principles in the U.S., or U.S. GAAP, for complete financial statements. The condensed consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2014 was derived from the audited financial statements at that date and does not
include all the disclosures required by U.S. GAAP, as permitted by Article 10 of the SEC�s Regulation S-X. The
Company�s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2015, and for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, include Herbalife and all of its direct and indirect subsidiaries. In the opinion of
management, the accompanying financial information contains all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary to present fairly the Company�s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of
March 31, 2015, and for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. These unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2014, or the 2014 10-K. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2015, are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2015.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU,
No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The new revenue recognition standard provides a
five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The core principle is that a
company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This ASU
is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and shall be applied either retrospectively to each
period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The FASB has proposed delaying the
effective date by one year. If the proposal is approved, early adoption would be permitted as of the original effective
date. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of this adoption on its consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Compensation�Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Accounting for
Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the
Requisite Service Period (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). This ASU clarifies that a
performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a
performance condition. A reporting entity should apply existing guidance in Topic 718 as it relates to awards with
performance conditions that affect vesting to account for such awards. As such, the performance target should not be
reflected in estimating the grant-date fair value of the award. Compensation cost should be recognized in the period in
which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation cost
attributable to the period(s) for which the requisite service has already been rendered. This ASU is effective for annual
periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. This
ASU may be applied either (a) prospectively to all awards granted or modified after the effective date or
(b) retrospectively to all awards with performance targets that are outstanding as of the beginning of the earliest
annual period presented in the financial statements and to all new or modified awards thereafter. The adoption of this
guidance will not have a material impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements � Going Concern
(Subtopic 205-40). The purpose of this ASU is to incorporate into U.S. GAAP management�s responsibility to evaluate
whether there is substantial doubt about an entity�s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
that the financial statements are issued (or within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued when applicable), and to provide related footnote disclosures. This update is effective for the annual period
ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. Early application is permitted.
The adoption of this guidance will not have a material impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

6
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In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-01, Income Statement�Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic
225-20): Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Items. This ASU is
part of the FASB�s initiative to reduce complexity in accounting standards. This ASU eliminates from U.S. GAAP the
concept of extraordinary items, which were previously required to be segregated from the results of ordinary
operations and shown separately in the income statement, net of tax, after income from continuing operations. Entities
were also required to disclose applicable income taxes for the extraordinary item and either present or disclose
earnings-per-share data applicable to the extraordinary item. Items which are considered both unusual and infrequent
will now be presented separately within income from continuing operations in the income statement or disclosed in
notes to the financial statements. This update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years,
beginning after December 15, 2015. Companies may apply the ASU prospectively, or may also apply the amendments
retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Early adoption is permitted provided that the
guidance is applied from the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. The adoption of this guidance will not have a
material impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810): Amendments to the Consolidation
Analysis. This ASU changes the analysis that reporting entities must perform to determine if certain types of legal
entities should be consolidated. Specifically, the ASU focuses on 1) the variable interest entity, or VIE, evaluation of
limited partnerships and similar legal entities, 2) eliminating the presumption that general partners should consolidate
a limited partnership, 3) the consolidation analysis of reporting entities that are involved with VIEs, and 4) scope
exceptions from consolidation guidance for reporting entities with interests in legal entities that are required to comply
with or operate in accordance with requirements that are similar to those in Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act
of 1940 for registered money market funds. This update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period.
If the ASU is adopted in an interim period, any adjustments should be reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year
that includes that interim period. The ASU may be applied using a modified retrospective approach by recording a
cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption. A reporting entity also may apply the
amendments retrospectively. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of this adoption on its consolidated
financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest�Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. This ASU requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability
now be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent
with debt discounts. Under current U.S. GAAP, debt issuance costs are recognized as a deferred charge asset. The
recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU. This
update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015.
Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. A reporting entity should
apply the amendments retrospectively, wherein the balance sheet of each individual period presented should be
adjusted to reflect the period-specific effects of applying the ASU. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of
this adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05, Intangibles�Goodwill and Other� Internal-Use Software
(Subtopic 350-40): Customer�s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement. This ASU adds
explicit guidance into U.S. GAAP regarding a customer�s accounting for fees paid in a cloud computing arrangement.
The ASU provides guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license.
If a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license, then the customer should account for the software
license element of the arrangement consistent with the acquisition of other software licenses. If a cloud computing
arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should account for the arrangement as a service
contract. This update is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
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December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. A reporting entity should apply the amendments either (1)
prospectively to all arrangements entered into or materially modified after the effective date or (2) retrospectively. The
Company is evaluating the potential impact of this adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

Venezuela

Herbalife Venezuela, the Company�s Venezuelan subsidiary, currently imports its products into Venezuela. Foreign
exchange controls in that country limit Herbalife Venezuela�s ability to repatriate earnings and settle its intercompany
obligations at any official rate. As a result, the Company�s Bolivar-denominated cash and cash equivalents have
continued to accumulate, increasing the potential impact of any currency devaluation. The current operating
environment in Venezuela also continues to be challenging for the Company�s Venezuela business, with high inflation,
price controls, and the risk that the government will further devalue the Bolivar.

        At December 31, 2014, the Company used the SICAD II rate of 50 Bolivars per U.S. dollar to remeasure
Herbalife Venezuela�s financial statements. In February 2015, the Venezuelan government announced the introduction
of a modified three-tier exchange control system which consists of CENCOEX, SICAD, and a third new mechanism
called the Marginal Currency System, or SIMADI, and the SICAD II exchange mechanism was terminated. On
February 12, 2015, the SIMADI exchange mechanism opened at a rate of 170 Bolivars per U.S. dollar as published by
the Venezuelan government. During the first quarter of 2015, the Company was awarded approximately $0.1 million
U.S. dollars through the SIMADI exchange mechanism and the Company�s ability to successfully exchange Bolivars
to U.S. dollars continues to remain limited. At March 31, 2015, the SIMADI exchange rate was 192 Bolivars per U.S.
dollar and the Company used this rate to remeasure its Venezuelan subsidiary�s financial statements. The Company
recognized $32.6 million in foreign exchange losses in selling, general & administrative expenses and $1.4 million of
inventory write downs in cost of sales within its condensed consolidated statement of income for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 related to the remeasurement of its Venezuelan subsidiary�s financial statements.

Due to the evolving foreign exchange control environment in Venezuela, it is possible that the Company�s ability to
access certain foreign exchange mechanisms, including the SIMADI rate, could change in future periods which may
have an impact on the rate the Company uses to remeasure Herbalife Venezuela�s Bolivar-denominated assets and
liabilities. If the Company continues using

7
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the SIMADI rate for remeasurement purposes in future periods, any future U.S. dollars obtained through the more
favorable SICAD mechanism could have a positive impact on the Company�s consolidated net earnings. In addition,
devaluations of the SIMADI rate, adoption of less favorable official rates by the Venezuelan government, or U.S.
dollars obtained through less favorable alternative legal exchange mechanisms, could have a negative impact on the
Company�s future consolidated net earnings. The Company is closely monitoring the CENCOEX, SICAD, and
SIMADI exchange mechanisms as they continue to evolve.

As a result of using the SICAD I rate for remeasurement at March 31, 2014, the Company recognized $86.1 million of
foreign exchange losses in selling, general & administrative expenses within its condensed consolidated statement of
income for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

As of March 31, 2015, Herbalife Venezuela�s net monetary assets and liabilities denominated in Bolivars was
approximately $11.0 million, and included approximately $11.5 million in Bolivar denominated cash and cash
equivalents. As noted above, these Bolivar denominated assets and liabilities were remeasured at the SIMADI rate as
of March 31, 2015. These remeasured amounts, including cash and cash equivalents, being reported on the Company�s
condensed consolidated balance sheet using the published SIMADI rate may not accurately represent the amount of
U.S. dollars that the Company will ultimately realize. While the Company continues to monitor the exchange
mechanisms and restrictions imposed by the Venezuelan government, and assess and monitor the current economic
and political environment in Venezuela, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to exchange Bolivars into
U.S. dollars on a timely basis. Herbalife Venezuela�s net sales represented approximately 1% and 4% of the Company�s
consolidated net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and its total assets
represented approximately 1% and 2% of the Company�s consolidated total assets as of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, respectively. As of March 31, 2015, the majority of Herbalife Venezuela�s total assets consisted of
Bolivar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

See the Company�s financial statements and related notes in the 2014 10-K for further information on Herbalife
Venezuela and Venezuela�s highly inflationary economy.

Investments in Bolivar-Denominated Bonds

The Company did not invest in any additional Bolivar-denominated bonds during the three months ended March 31,
2015. During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company invested in additional Bolivar-denominated
bonds with a purchase price of 20.3 million Bolivars, or approximately $3.2 million, using the CADIVI rate. The
Company classifies these bonds as long-term available-for-sale investments which are carried at fair value, inclusive
of unrealized gains and losses, and net of discount accretion and premium amortization. The fair value of these bonds
are determined using Level 2 inputs which include prices of similar assets traded in active markets in Venezuela and
observable yield curves. Net unrealized gains and losses on these bonds are included in other comprehensive income
(loss) and are net of applicable income taxes. As of March 31, 2015, the amortized cost of the Company�s Venezuelan
bonds was $1.1 million and the bonds had a market value of $0.9 million. As of March 31, 2015, the Company�s
Venezuelan bonds had contractual maturities due after five years. Expected disposal dates of the bonds may be less
than the contractual maturity dates. During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not
sell any of its Venezuelan bonds.

The Company evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on a quarterly basis. The impairment
evaluation considers numerous factors, and their relative significance varies depending on the situation. Factors
considered include the length of time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost; the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer of the securities; when applicable, the foreign exchange rates that are
available to the Company; and the intent and ability of the Company to retain the security in order to allow for an
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anticipated recovery in fair value. If, based upon the analysis, it is determined that the impairment is
other-than-temporary, the security is written-down to fair value, and a loss is recognized in other expense, net in the
Company�s condensed consolidated income statement. Other-than-temporary impairments relating to available-for-sale
securities for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $2.3 million and $3.2 million, respectively, which
were primarily due to unfavorable foreign exchange rates.

3. Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of finished goods available for resale. Inventories are stated at lower of cost (primarily
on the first-in, first-out basis) or market. The following are the major classes of inventory:

March 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

(In millions)
Raw materials $ 34.5 $ 39.5
Work in process 4.0 4.3
Finished goods 296.5 333.9

Total $ 335.0 $ 377.7

8
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4. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

March 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

(In millions)
Borrowings under the senior secured credit facility $ 825.0 $ 850.0
Convertible senior notes, carrying value of liability
component 970.5 961.7
Other debt 17.3 �  

Total 1,812.8 1,811.7
Less: current portion 419.4 100.0

Long-term portion $ 1,393.4 $ 1,711.7

Senior Secured Credit Facility

On March 9, 2011, the Company entered into a $700.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility, or the Credit
Facility, with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders and terminated its prior senior secured credit facility, or
the Prior Credit Facility. The Credit Facility has a five year maturity and expires on March 9, 2016. Based on the
Company�s consolidated leverage ratio, U.S. dollar borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at either LIBOR
plus the applicable margin between 1.50% and 2.50% or the base rate plus the applicable margin between 0.50% and
1.50%. The base rate under the Credit Facility represents the highest of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%, the
one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%, and the prime rate offered by Bank of America. The Company, based on its
consolidated leverage ratio, pays a commitment fee between 0.25% and 0.50% per annum on the unused portion of the
Credit Facility. The Credit Facility also permits the Company to borrow limited amounts in Mexican Peso and Euro
currencies based on variable rates. All obligations under the Credit Facility are unconditionally guaranteed by certain
of the Company�s subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of the assets of the U.S. subsidiaries of the
Company�s parent, Herbalife Ltd.

In March 2011, the Company used $196.0 million in U.S. dollar borrowings under the Credit Facility to repay all
amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Facility. The Company incurred approximately $5.7 million of debt
issuance costs in connection with the Credit Facility. These debt issuance costs were recorded as deferred financing
costs on the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized over the term of the Credit
Facility.

On July 26, 2012, the Company amended the Credit Facility to include a $500.0 million term loan with a syndicate of
financial institutions as lenders, or the Term Loan. The Term Loan is a part of the Credit Facility and is in addition to
the Company�s current revolving credit facility. The Term Loan matures on March 9, 2016. The Company will make
regular scheduled payments for the Term Loan consisting of both principal and interest components. Based on the
Company�s consolidated leverage ratio, the Term Loan bears interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin
between 1.50% and 2.50% or the base rate plus the applicable margin between 0.50% and 1.50% which are the same
terms as the Company�s revolving credit facility.
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In July 2012, the Company used all $500.0 million of the borrowings under the Term Loan to pay down amounts
outstanding under the Company�s revolving credit facility. The Company incurred approximately $4.5 million of debt
issuance costs in connection with the Term Loan. The debt issuance costs are recorded as deferred financing costs on
the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheet and will be amortized over the life of the Term Loan.

In February 2014, in connection with issuing the $1.15 billion Convertible Notes described below, the Company
amended the Credit Facility. Pursuant to this amendment, the Company amended the terms of the Credit Facility to
provide for technical amendments to the indebtedness, asset sale and dividend covenants and the cross-default event
of default to accommodate the issuance of the Convertible Notes and the capped call and prepaid forward share
repurchase transactions described in greater detail in Note 10, Shareholders� Deficit. The amendment also increased
by 0.50% the highest applicable margin payable by Herbalife in the event that Herbalife�s consolidated total leverage
ratio is equal to or exceeds 2.50 to 1.00 and increased the permitted consolidated total leverage ratio of Herbalife
under the Credit Facility. The Company incurred approximately $2.3 million of debt issuance costs in connection with
the amendment. The debt issuance costs are recorded as deferred financing costs on the Company�s condensed
consolidated balance sheet and will be amortized over the life of the Credit Facility. On March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, the weighted average interest rate for borrowings under the Credit Facility, including borrowings
under the Term Loan, was 2.69% and 3.04%, respectively.

The Credit Facility requires the Company to comply with a leverage ratio and a coverage ratio. In addition, the Credit
Facility contains customary covenants, including covenants that limit or restrict the Company�s ability to incur liens,
incur indebtedness, make investments, dispose of assets, make certain restricted payments, pay dividends, repurchase
its common shares, merge or consolidate and enter into certain transactions with affiliates. As of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, the Company was compliant with its debt covenants under the Credit Facility.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company repaid a total amount of $25.0 million under the Credit
Facility. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility
was $825.0 million and $850.0 million, respectively. Of the $825.0 million U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the
Credit Facility as of March 31, 2015, $325.0 million was outstanding on the Term Loan and $500.0 million was
outstanding on the revolving credit facility. Of the $850.0 million U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit
Facility as of December 31, 2014, $350.0 million was outstanding on the Term Loan and $500.0 million was
outstanding on the revolving credit facility. There were no outstanding foreign currency borrowings as of March 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014 under the Credit Facility.

The fair value of the outstanding borrowings on the Company�s revolving credit facility and Term Loan approximated
their carrying values as of March 31, 2015, due to their variable interest rates which reprice frequently and represent
floating market rates. The fair value of the outstanding borrowings on the Company�s revolving credit facility and
Term Loan are determined by utilizing Level 2 inputs as defined in Note 12, Fair Value Measurements, such as
observable market interest rates and yield curves. See Note 14, Subsequent Events, for further information on the
amendment to the Credit Facility.

Convertible Senior Notes

During February 2014, the Company initially issued $1 billion aggregate principal amount of convertible senior notes,
or Convertible Notes, in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers, pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended. The Company granted an option to the initial purchasers to purchase up to an additional
$150 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Notes which was subsequently exercised in full during
February 2014, resulting in a total issuance of $1.15 billion aggregate principal amount of Convertible Notes. The
Convertible Notes are senior unsecured obligations which rank effectively subordinated to any of our existing and
future secured indebtedness, including amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility, to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such indebtedness. The Convertible Notes pay interest at a rate of 2.00% per annum payable
semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning on August 15, 2014. The Convertible
Notes mature on August 15, 2019, unless earlier repurchased or converted. The Company may not redeem the
Convertible Notes prior to their stated maturity date. Holders of the Convertible Notes may convert their notes at their
option under the following circumstances: (i) during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter
ending March 31, 2014, if the last reported sale price of the Company�s common shares for at least 20 trading days
(whether or not consecutive) in a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on, and including, the last trading day
of the immediately preceding calendar quarter exceeds 130% of the conversion price for the Convertible Notes on
each applicable trading day; (ii) during the five business-day period immediately after any five consecutive trading
day period, or the measurement period, in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Convertible Notes
for each trading day of that measurement period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of the
Company�s common shares and the conversion rate for the Convertible Notes for each such day; or (iii) upon the
occurrence of specified corporate events. On and after May 15, 2019, holders may convert their Convertible Notes at
any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances. Upon conversion, the Convertible Notes will be settled in cash
and, if applicable, the Company�s common shares, based on the applicable conversion rate at such time. The
Convertible Notes had an initial conversion rate of 11.5908 common shares per $1,000 principal amount of the
Convertible Notes (which is equal to an initial conversion price of approximately $86.28 per common share).

The Company incurred approximately $26.6 million of issuance costs during the first quarter of 2014 relating to the
issuance of the Convertible Notes. Of the $26.6 million issuance costs incurred, $21.5 million and $5.1 million were
recorded to deferred financing costs and additional paid-in capital, respectively, in proportion to the allocation of the
proceeds of the Convertible Notes. The $21.5 million recorded to deferred financing costs on the Company�s
condensed consolidated balance sheet is being amortized over the contractual term of the Convertible Notes using the
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effective interest method.

During February 2014, the $1.15 billion proceeds received from the issuance of the Convertible Notes were initially
allocated between long-term debt, or liability component, and additional paid-in-capital, or equity component, within
the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheet at $930.9 million and $219.1 million, respectively. The liability
component was measured using the nonconvertible debt interest rate. The carrying amount of the equity component
representing the conversion option was determined by deducting the fair value of the liability component from the
face value of the Convertible Notes as a whole. Since the Company must still settle these Convertible Notes at face
value at or prior to maturity, this liability component will be accreted up to its face value resulting in additional
non-cash interest expense being recognized within the Company�s condensed consolidated statements of income while
the Convertible Notes remain outstanding. The effective interest rate on the Convertible Notes is approximately
6.2% per annum. The equity component is not remeasured as long as it continues to meet the conditions for equity
classification.

As of March 31, 2015, the outstanding principal on the Convertible Notes was $1.15 billion, the unamortized debt
discount was $179.5 million, and the carrying amount of the liability component was $970.5 million, which was
recorded to long-term debt within the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheet as reflected in the table above
within this Note. As of March 31, 2015, the fair
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value of the liability component relating to the Convertible Notes was approximately $866.2 million. At March 31,
2015, the Company determined the fair value of the liability component of the Convertible Notes using two valuation
methods. The Company reviewed market data that was available for publicly traded, senior, unsecured nonconvertible
corporate bonds issued by companies with similar credit ratings. Assumptions used in the estimate represent what
market participants would use in pricing the liability component, including market yields and credit standing to
develop the straight debt yield estimate. The Company also used a lattice model, which included inputs such as stock
price, the Convertible Note trading price, volatility and dividend yield as of March 31, 2015, to estimate the straight
debt yield. The Company combined the results of the two valuation methods to determine the fair value of the liability
component of the Convertible Notes. Most of these inputs are primarily considered Level 2 and Level 3 inputs. This
valuation approach was similar to the approach the Company used to determine the initial fair value of the liability
component of the Convertible Notes on the February 7, 2014 issuance date.

In conjunction with the issuance of the Convertible Notes, during February 2014, the Company paid approximately
$685.8 million to enter into prepaid forward share repurchase transactions, or the Forward Transactions, with certain
financial institutions, and paid approximately $123.8 million to enter into capped call transactions with respect to its
common shares, or the Capped Call Transactions, with certain financial institutions. See Note 10, Shareholders�
Deficit, for additional discussion on the Forward Transactions and Capped Call Transactions entered into in
conjunction with the issuance of these Convertible Notes.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company recognized $15.2 million of interest expense relating to
the Convertible Notes, which included $8.8 million relating to non-cash interest expense relating to the debt discount
and $0.9 million relating to amortization of deferred financing costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2014,
the Company recognized $8.8 million of interest expense relating to the Convertible Notes, which included $4.9
million relating to non-cash interest expense relating to the debt discount and $0.5 million relating to amortization of
deferred financing costs. The Company�s total interest expense, including the Credit Facility, was $23.4 million and
$17.8 million, for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which was recognized within its
condensed consolidated statement of income.

As of March 31, 2015, the aggregate annual maturities of the Credit Facility were expected to be $75.0 million for the
remainder of 2015 and $750.0 million for 2016. On May 4, 2015, the Credit Facility was amended, as described in
Note 14, Subsequent Events. Pursuant to the amended Credit Facility, the aggregate annual maturities are now
expected to be $174.6 million for the remainder of 2015, $229.7 million for 2016, and $420.7 million for 2017. The
$1.15 billion Convertible Notes are due 2019.

Certain vendors and government agencies may require letters of credit or similar guaranteeing arrangements to be
issued or executed. As of March 31, 2015, the Company had $36.5 million of issued but undrawn letters of credit or
similar arrangements, which included the Mexico Value Added Tax, or VAT, related surety bonds described in Note
5, Contingencies.

5. Contingencies

The Company is from time to time engaged in routine litigation. The Company regularly reviews all pending litigation
matters in which it is involved and establishes reserves deemed appropriate by management for these litigation matters
when a probable loss estimate can be made.

As a marketer of foods, dietary and nutritional supplements, and other products that are ingested by consumers or
applied to their bodies, the Company has been and is currently subjected to various product liability claims. The
effects of these claims to date have not been material to the Company, and the reasonably possible range of exposure
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on currently existing claims is not material to the Company. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to
the allegations contained in the lawsuits. The Company currently maintains product liability insurance with an annual
deductible of $15 million.

Certain of the Company�s subsidiaries have been subject to tax audits by governmental authorities in their respective
countries. In certain of these tax audits, governmental authorities are proposing that significant amounts of additional
taxes and related interest and penalties are due. The Company and its tax advisors believe that there are substantial
defenses to governmental allegations that significant additional taxes are owed, and the Company is vigorously
contesting the additional proposed taxes and related charges. On May 7, 2010, the Company received an assessment
from the Mexican Tax Administration Service in an amount equivalent to approximately $75 million, translated at the
March 31, 2015 spot rate, for various items, the majority of which was Value Added Tax, or VAT, allegedly owed on
certain of the Company�s products imported into Mexico during the years 2005 and 2006. This assessment is subject to
interest and inflationary adjustments. On July 8, 2010, the Company initiated a formal administrative appeal process.
On May 13, 2011, the Mexican Tax Administration Service issued a resolution on the Company�s administrative
appeal. The resolution nullified the assessment. Since the Mexican Tax Administration Service can further review the
tax audit findings and re-issue some or all of the original assessment, the Company commenced litigation in the Tax
Court of Mexico in August 2011 to dispute the assertions made by the Mexican Tax Administration Service in the
case. The Company received notification on February 6, 2015 that the Tax Court of Mexico nullified substantially all
of the assessment. On March 18, 2015, the Mexican Tax Administration Service filed an appeal against the verdict
with the Circuit Court. The Company is currently preparing its response to that appeal.

The Mexican Tax Administration Service commenced audits of the Company�s Mexican subsidiaries for the period
from January to September 2007 and on May 10, 2013, the Company received an assessment of approximately $19
million, translated at the March 31, 2015 spot rate, related to that period. On July 11, 2013, the Company filed an
administrative appeal disputing the assessment. In addition, the Mexican Tax Administration Service has requested
additional information in response to Company filings
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for VAT refunds. On September 22, 2014, the Mexican Tax Administration Service denied the Company�s
administrative appeal. The Company commenced litigation in the Tax Court of Mexico in November 2014 to dispute
the assertions made by the Mexican Tax Administration Service in the case. The Company issued a surety bond in the
amount of $20.9 million, translated at the March 31, 2015 spot rate, through an insurance company to guarantee
payment of the tax assessment as required while the Company pursues an appeal of the assessment. Litigation in this
case is currently ongoing. The Company has not recognized a loss as the Company does not believe a loss is probable.

The Mexican Tax Administration Service audited the Company�s Mexican subsidiaries for the 2011 year. The audit
focused on importation and VAT issues. On June 25, 2013, the Mexican Tax Administration Service closed the audit
of the 2011 year without any assessment.

The Company has not recognized a loss with respect to any of these Mexican matters as the Company, based on its
analysis and guidance from its advisors, does not believe a loss is probable. Further, the Company is currently unable
to reasonably estimate a possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome if an assessment
was re-issued or any additional assessments were to be issued for these or other periods. The Company believes that it
has meritorious defenses if the assessment is re-issued or would have meritorious defenses if any additional
assessment is issued.

The Mexican Tax Administration Service has requested information related to the Company�s 2010 year. This
information has been provided. In addition, the Mexican Tax Administration Service requested information related to
the Company�s 2012 year. This information has been provided. The Mexican Tax Administration Service may request
additional information or audit additional periods.

The Mexican Tax Administration Service has delayed processing VAT refunds for companies operating in Mexico
and the Company believes that the process for its Mexico subsidiary to receive VAT refunds may be delayed. In
March 2015, the Company commenced litigation in the Tax Court of Mexico to reclaim the VAT refund pertaining
specifically to the July 2013 period. As of March 31, 2015, the Company had $54.1 million of Mexico VAT related
assets within other assets on its consolidated balance sheet. This amount relates to VAT payments made over various
periods. The Company has not recognized any losses related to these VAT related assets as the Company does not
believe a loss is probable.

On March 26, 2015, the Office of the President of Mexico issued a decree relating to the application of VAT to
Nutritional Supplements. The Company continues to believe its application of the VAT law in Mexico is correct. At
March 31, 2015, the Company has not recognized any losses as the Company, based on its current analysis and
guidance from its advisors, does not believe a loss is probable. The Company continues to evaluate and monitor its
situation as it develops, including whether it will make any changes to its operations in Mexico.

The Company received a tax assessment in September 2009 from the Federal Revenue Office of Brazil in an amount
equivalent to approximately $2.6 million, translated at the March 31, 2015 spot rate, related to
withholding/contributions based on payments to the Company�s Members during 2004. On December 28, 2010, the
Company appealed this tax assessment to the Administrative Council of Tax Appeals (2nd level administrative
appeal). The Company believes it has meritorious defenses and it has not recognized a loss as the Company does not
believe a loss is probable. On March 6, 2014, the Company was notified of a similar audit of the 2011 year. This audit
is ongoing. The Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate the amount of the loss that may result from an
unfavorable outcome if additional assessments for other periods were to be issued.

The Company�s Brazilian subsidiary pays ICMS-ST taxes on its product purchases, similar to VAT. The Company
believes it will be able to utilize or recover these ICMS-ST credits in the future. As of March 31, 2015, the Company
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had $14.1 million of Brazil ICMS-ST related assets within other assets on its consolidated balance sheet. At March 31,
2015, the Company has not recognized any losses related to these ICMS-ST related assets as the Company does not
believe a loss is probable.

The Korea Customs Service is currently auditing the importation activities of Herbalife Korea for the periods 2010
and later. If an assessment is issued, the Company would likely be required to pay the amount requested in order to
appeal the assessment. Based on the Company�s analysis and guidance from its advisors, the Company does not
believe a loss is probable. Further, the Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate a possible loss or range of
loss.

        Bostick, et al., v. Herbalife Int�l of Am., Inc., et al. On April 8, 2013, Herbalife Ltd. and certain of its subsidiaries
were named as defendants in a suit filed in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California, challenging
Herbalife�s marketing practices and business structure under California laws prohibiting �endless chain schemes,� unfair
and deceptive business practices, and false advertising, as well as federal RICO statutes. On July 7, 2014, the
complaint was amended to add additional plaintiffs. The plaintiffs seek damages in an unspecified amount. The
federal RICO claim was dismissed. While the Company continues to believe the suit is without merit, and without in
any way admitting liability or wrongdoing, the Company and the plaintiffs reached a settlement. Under the terms of
the settlement, the Company would (i) pay $15 million into a fund to be distributed to qualified claimants and
(ii) accept up to a maximum amount of $2.5 million in product returns from qualified claimants. The court granted
preliminary approval of the settlement on December 2, 2014 and conditionally certified a class. The final approval
hearing is set for May 11, 2015. As of March 31, 2015, these amounts were adequately reserved for in the Company�s
financial statements. The Company has transferred $15 million to an escrow account which was included in prepaid
expenses and other current assets within its consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2015.
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In re Herbalife, Ltd. Securities Litigation (formerly captioned Awad v. Herbalife Ltd., et al.). On April 14, 2014,
Herbalife Ltd. and certain of its officers were named as defendants in a purported stockholder class action, filed in the
U.S. District Court for the Central District of California and asserting claims under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. The complaint alleged that the Company and certain officers made material misstatements concerning the
Company�s finances and business practices, and contended that the Company is operating a pyramid scheme. The
initial complaint sought to represent a class of investors that had purchased shares of the Company�s common stock
between May 4, 2010 and April 11, 2014. On July 30, 2014, the Court approved the appointment of different
shareholders as lead plaintiffs and approved their selection of counsel. On September 18, 2014, these lead plaintiffs
filed an Amended Class Action Complaint for Violation of the Federal Securities Laws against the Company, and
certain of its officers. The Amended Complaint brings claims for unspecified damages under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, alleges that the defendants made material misstatements that �fundamentally misrepresented
the nature, scope and legality of the Company�s business and operations to consumers and investors alike,� and further
alleges that the Company is one of �the most sophisticated pyramid schemes in history.� The lead plaintiffs seek to
represent a class of all persons or entities that purchased shares of the Company�s common stock between February 23,
2011 and July 29, 2014. On March 16, 2015, the Court granted Defendants� motion to dismiss all claims in the
Amended Complaint with leave to file an amended complaint and dismissed one of the shareholders as lead plaintiff.
If a plaintiff elects to file an amended complaint again, it must do so by May 8, 2015. The Company intends to
vigorously defend this purported class action suit. The Company has not recognized a loss as it does not believe a loss
is probable. Further, the Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate a possible loss or range of loss.

U.S. Federal Trade Commission Civil Investigative Demand. As previously disclosed, the Company received from the
U.S. Federal Trade Commission, or the FTC, a Civil Investigative Demand, or a CID, relating to the FTC�s
confidential investigation of whether the Company has complied with federal law in the advertising, marketing, or
sale of business opportunities. Pursuant to the CID, as supplemented, the FTC has requested from the Company
documents and other information for the time period commencing January 1, 2009 to the present. The Company is
cooperating with the investigation and cannot predict the eventual scope, duration or outcome of the investigation at
this time.

Since late 2012, a short seller has made and continues to make allegations regarding the Company and its network
marketing program. The Company believes these allegations are without merit and is vigorously defending itself
against such claims, including proactively reaching out to governmental authorities about what the Company believes
is manipulative activity with respect to its securities. Because of these allegations, the Company and others have
received and may receive additional regulatory and governmental inquiries. For example, the Company has previously
disclosed inquiries from the Federal Trade Commission, Securities and Exchange Commission and other
governmental authorities. The Department of Justice recently sought information from the Company, certain of its
Members and others regarding allegations being made about the business practices of the Company and its
Members. In the future, these and other governmental authorities may determine to seek information from the
Company and other persons relating to these same or other allegations. If the Company believes any governmental or
regulatory inquiry or investigation is or becomes material it will be disclosed individually. Consistent with its policies,
the Company has cooperated and will continue to fully cooperate with any governmental or regulatory inquiries or
investigations.

These matters may take several years to resolve. While the Company believes it has meritorious defenses, it cannot be
sure of their ultimate resolution. Although the Company may reserve amounts for certain matters that the Company
believes represent the most likely outcome of the resolution of these related disputes, if the Company is incorrect in its
assessment, the Company may have to record additional expenses, when it becomes probable that an increased
potential liability is warranted.
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6. Segment Information

The Company is a nutrition company that sells a wide range of weight management, targeted nutrition, energy,
sports & fitness, and outer nutrition products. The Company�s products are manufactured by third party providers and
by the Company in its Changsha, Hunan, China extraction facility, Suzhou, China facility, Lake Forest, California
facility, and in its Winston-Salem, North Carolina facility, and then are sold to Members who consume and sell
Herbalife products to retail consumers or other Members. Revenues reflect sales of products by the Company to its
Members and are categorized based on geographic location.

As of March 31, 2015, the Company sold products in 91 countries throughout the world and was organized and
managed by geographic regions. The Company aggregates its operating segments, excluding China, into one reporting
segment, or the Primary Reporting Segment, as management believes that the Company�s operating segments have
similar operating characteristics and similar long term operating performance. In making this determination,
management believes that the operating segments are similar in the nature of the products sold, the product acquisition
process, the types of customers to whom products are sold, the methods used to distribute the products, the nature of
the regulatory environment, and their economic characteristics. China has been identified as a separate reporting
segment as it does not meet the criteria for aggregation. The operating information for the Primary Reporting Segment
and China, and sales by product line are as follows:
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Three Months Ended
March 31,

2015
March 31,

2014
(In millions)

Net Sales:
Primary Reporting Segment
United States(4) $ 221.9 $ 242.3
Mexico 123.6 142.7
South Korea 71.8 99.0
Others 523.9 642.8

Total Primary Reporting Segment 941.2 1,126.8
China 164.2 135.8

Total Net Sales $ 1,105.4 $ 1,262.6

Contribution Margin(1)(2):
Primary Reporting Segment
United States(4) $ 92.2 $ 103.9
Mexico 58.7 61.4
South Korea 41.6 55.4
Others 226.5 284.5

Total Primary Reporting Segment 419.0 505.2
China 148.0 124.4

Total Contribution Margin $ 567.0 $ 629.6

Selling, general and administrative expenses(2) 431.4 502.1
Interest expense, net 21.5 14.9
Other expense, net 2.3 3.2

Income before income taxes 111.8 109.4
Income taxes 33.6 34.8

Net Income $ 78.2 $ 74.6

Net sales by product line:
Weight Management $ 703.9 $ 807.6
Targeted Nutrition 251.9 284.0
Energy, Sports and Fitness 60.1 66.7
Outer Nutrition 35.4 39.7
Literature, promotional and other(3) 54.1 64.6

Total Net Sales $ 1,105.4 $ 1,262.6

Net sales by geographic region:
North America $ 226.7 $ 247.8
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Mexico 123.6 142.7
South and Central America 161.7 244.7
EMEA 186.4 211.2
Asia Pacific 242.8 280.4
China 164.2 135.8

Total Net Sales $ 1,105.4 $ 1,262.6

(1) Contribution margin consists of net sales less cost of sales and royalty overrides.
(2) Service fees to China independent service providers totaling $78.7 million and $61.6 million for the three months

ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses while
Member compensation for all other countries is included in contribution margin.

(3) Product buybacks and returns in all product categories are included in the literature, promotional and other
category.
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(4) Net sales and contribution margin for 2014 within the Primary Reporting Segment information have been
revised to correct a misclassification. As a result, United States net sales and contribution margin have been
increased by $8.3 million and $3.3 million, respectively, while Others net sales and contribution margin have
been decreased by the same amounts.

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, total assets for the Company�s Primary Reporting Segment were
$2,038.8 million and $2,066.2 million, respectively. Total assets for the China segment were $350.1 million and
$308.7 million as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, goodwill allocated to the Company�s reporting units included in the Company�s Primary Reporting Segment was
$93.1 million and $98.8 million, respectively. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, goodwill allocated to
the China segment was $3.4 million for both periods.

7. Share-Based Compensation

The Company has share-based compensation plans, which are more fully described in Note 9, Share-Based
Compensation, to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2014 10-K. During the three months ended March 31,
2015, the Company granted stock awards subject to service conditions, and service and performance conditions,
consisting of stock appreciation rights, or SARs, each with vesting terms fully described in the 2014 10-K.

In March 2015, the Company also granted SARs with service and market conditions to certain employees. These
SARs vest on the third anniversary of grant subject to the employees� continued employment through that date and the
achievement of certain conditions related to the market value of the Company�s common shares. The fair value of these
SARs was determined on the date of the grant using the Monte Carlo lattice model.

For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, share-based compensation expense amounted to $11.1 million
and $11.0 million, respectively. As of March 31, 2015, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to all
non-vested stock awards was $80.2 million and the related weighted-average period over which it is expected to be
recognized is approximately 1.7 years.

The following tables summarize the activity under all share-based compensation plans for the three months ended
March 31, 2015:

Stock Options & SARs Awards

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value(1)

(In thousands) (In millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 (3) 11,169 $ 37.46 5.4 years $ 110.6
Granted(5) 3,181 $ 30.46
Exercised (1,775) $ 21.90
Forfeited (30) $ 55.50

Outstanding at March 31, 2015(2) (3) 12,545 $ 37.84 6.8 years $ 141.2

Exercisable at March 31, 2015 (4) 5,802 $ 28.94 4.7 years $ 101.7
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(1) The intrinsic value is the amount by which the current market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise
price of the stock awards.

(2) Includes 0.1 million market condition SARs.
(3) Includes 1.0 million and 2.2 million performance condition SARs as of December 31, 2014 and March 31, 2015,

respectively.
(4) Includes 0.1 million performance condition SARs.
(5) Includes 0.1 million market condition and 1.2 million performance condition SARs.
The weighted-average grant date fair value of SARs granted during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
was $12.18 and $28.68, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options and SARs exercised during the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was $17.6 million and $14.8 million, respectively.

Incentive Plan and Independent Directors Stock Units Shares

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

(In thousands)
Outstanding and nonvested December 31, 2014 33 $ 63.67
Granted �  �  
Vested (1) $ 59.98
Forfeited (2) $ 59.98

Outstanding and nonvested at March 31, 2015 30 $ 63.97
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The total vesting date fair value of stock units which vested during the three months ended March 31, 2015 was less
than $0.1 million. The total vesting date fair value of stock units which vested during the three months ended
March 31, 2014 was $8.2 million.

The Company recognizes excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation to shareholders� deficit only
when realized. When assessing whether excess tax benefits relating to share-based compensation have been realized,
the Company follows the with-and-without approach. Under this approach, excess tax benefits related to share-based
compensation are not deemed to be realized until after the utilization of all other tax benefits available to the
Company, which are also subject to applicable limitations. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the
Company had $24.2 million and $23.6 million, respectively, of unrealized excess tax benefits.

8. Income Taxes

Income taxes were $33.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to $34.8 million for the
same period in 2014. The effective income tax rate was 30.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to 31.8% for the same period in 2014. The decrease in the effective tax rate for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014, was primarily due to a decrease in net expenses from
discrete events, partially offset by the impact of changes in the geographic mix of the Company�s income.

As of March 31, 2015, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including related interest and penalties was
$50.6 million. If the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits was recognized, $40.5 million of unrecognized tax
benefits, $6.1 million of interest and $1.3 million of penalties would impact the effective tax rate.

The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by
up to approximately $10.8 million within the next twelve months. Of this possible decrease, $6.2 million would be
due to the settlement of audits or resolution of administrative or judicial proceedings. The remaining possible decrease
of $4.6 million would be due to the expiration of statute of limitations in various jurisdictions.

9. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Foreign Currency Instruments

The Company also designates certain foreign currency derivatives, primarily comprised of foreign currency forward
contracts, as freestanding derivatives for which hedge accounting does not apply. The changes in the fair market value
of these freestanding derivatives are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Company�s
condensed consolidated statements of income. The Company uses freestanding foreign currency derivatives to hedge
foreign-currency-denominated intercompany transactions and to partially mitigate the impact of foreign currency
fluctuations. The fair value of the freestanding foreign currency derivatives is based on third-party quotes. The
Company�s foreign currency derivative contracts are generally executed on a monthly basis.

The Company designates as cash-flow hedges those foreign currency forward contracts it enters into to hedge
forecasted inventory purchases and intercompany management fees that are subject to foreign currency exposures.
Forward contracts are used to hedge forecasted inventory purchases over specific months. Changes in the fair value of
these forward contracts, excluding forward points, designated as cash-flow hedges are recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders� deficit, and are recognized in cost of sales in the
condensed consolidated statement of income during the period which approximates the time the hedged inventory is
sold. The Company also hedges forecasted intercompany management fees over specific months. These contracts
allow the Company to sell Euros in exchange for U.S. dollars at specified contract rates. Changes in the fair value of
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these forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders� deficit, and are recognized in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the condensed consolidated statement of income during the period when the hedged item and underlying
transaction affect earnings.

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the aggregate notional amounts of all foreign currency contracts
outstanding designated as cash flow hedges were approximately $201.6 million and $225.3 million, respectively. At
March 31, 2015, these outstanding contracts were expected to mature over the next twelve months. The Company�s
derivative financial instruments are recorded on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at fair value based on
third-party quotes. As of March 31, 2015, the Company recorded assets at fair value of $18.2 million and liabilities at
fair value of $6.1 million relating to all outstanding foreign currency contracts designated as cash-flow hedges. As of
December 31, 2014, the Company recorded assets at fair value of $12.3 million and liabilities at fair value of $1.6
million relating to all outstanding foreign currency contracts designated as cash-flow hedges. The Company assesses
hedge effectiveness and measures hedge ineffectiveness at least quarterly. During the three months ended March 31,
2015 and 2014, the ineffective portion relating to these hedges was immaterial and the hedges remained effective as of
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
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As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the majority of the Company�s outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts had maturity dates of less than twelve months with the majority of freestanding derivatives expiring within
three and two months as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. As of March 31, 2015, the
Company had aggregate notional amounts of approximately $419.1 million of foreign currency contracts, inclusive of
freestanding contracts and contracts designated as cash flow hedges.

Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments

The following table summarizes gains (losses) relating to derivative instruments recorded in other comprehensive
income (loss) during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized
in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

(In millions)
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to
inventory and intercompany management fee
hedges $ 7.2 $ (0.2) 

The following table summarizes gains (losses) relating to derivative instruments recorded to income during the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:

Location of Gain
(Loss)

Recognized in Income

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2015March 31, 2014

(In millions)
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange currency
contracts relating to inventory
hedges and intercompany
management fee hedges (1)

Selling, general and

administrative expenses $ (0.1) $ (1.6) 
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange currency
contracts

Selling, general and
administrative expenses $ (6.0) $ (2.9) 

(1) For foreign exchange contracts designated as hedging instruments, the amounts recognized in income (loss)
primarily represent the amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. There were no material
ineffective amounts reported for derivatives designated as hedging instruments.
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The following table summarizes gains (losses) relating to derivative instruments reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss into income during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:

Location of Gain
(Loss)

Reclassified
from Accumulated

Other Comprehensive
Loss into Income

(Effective
Portion)

Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified
from Accumulated

Other Comprehensive
Loss into Income

For the Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2015March 31, 2014
(In millions)

Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange currency
contracts relating to inventory
hedges Cost of sales $ 1.4 $ 0.3
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The Company reports its derivatives at fair value as either assets or liabilities within its condensed consolidated
balance sheet. See Note 12, Fair Value Measurements, for information on derivative fair values and their condensed
consolidated balance sheet location as of March 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014.

10. Shareholders� Deficit

Dividends

The declaration of future dividends is subject to the discretion of the Company�s board of directors and will depend
upon various factors, including its earnings, financial condition, Herbalife Ltd.�s available distributable reserves under
Cayman Islands law, restrictions imposed by the Credit Facility and the terms of any other indebtedness that may be
outstanding, cash requirements, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by its board of directors. The
Credit Facility permits payments of dividends as long as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated
leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not exceeded. See Note 14, Subsequent Events, for further information
on the amendment to the Credit Facility.

On April 28, 2014, the Company announced that its board of directors approved terminating the Company�s quarterly
cash dividend and instead utilizing the cash to repurchase additional common shares as discussed below. There were
no dividends declared and paid during the three months ended March 31, 2015. The aggregate amount of dividends
declared and paid during the three months ended March 31, 2014 was $30.4 million.

During the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company received $3.4 million of dividends primarily relating to
the Forward Transactions described below which was recorded directly to its accumulated deficit. The Company did
not receive any dividends during the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Share Repurchases

On July 30, 2012, the Company announced that its board of directors authorized a new $1 billion share repurchase
program that will expire on June 30, 2017. On February 3, 2014, the Company announced that its board of directors
authorized an increase in the existing share repurchase authorization to an available balance of $1.5 billion. This share
repurchase program allows the Company to repurchase its common shares, at such times and prices as determined by
the Company�s management as market conditions warrant, and to the extent Herbalife Ltd.�s distributable reserves are
available under Cayman Islands law. The Credit Facility permits the Company to repurchase its common shares as
long as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not
exceeded. See Note 14, Subsequent Events, for further information on the amendment to the Credit Facility.

In conjunction with the issuance of the Convertible Notes during February 2014, the Company paid approximately
$685.8 million to enter into prepaid forward share repurchase transactions, or the Forward Transactions, with certain
financial institutions, or the Forward Counterparties, pursuant to which the Company purchased approximately
9.9 million common shares for settlement on or around the August 15, 2019 maturity date for the Convertible Notes,
subject to the ability of each Forward Counterparty to elect to settle all or a portion of its Forward Transactions early.
The Forward Transactions were generally expected to facilitate privately negotiated derivative transactions between
the Forward Counterparties and holders of the Convertible Notes, including swaps, relating to the common shares by
which holders of the Convertible Notes establish short positions relating to the common shares and otherwise hedge
their investments in the Convertible Notes concurrently with, or shortly after, the pricing of the Convertible Notes. As
a result of the Forward Transactions, the Company�s total shareholders� deficit within its condensed consolidated
balance sheet was reduced by approximately $685.8 million during the first quarter of 2014, with amounts of $653.9
million and $31.9 million being allocated between accumulated deficit and additional paid-in-capital, respectively,
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within total shareholders� deficit. Also, upon executing the Forward Transactions, the Company recorded $35.8 million
in non-cash issuance costs to other assets and a corresponding amount to additional paid-in-capital within its
condensed consolidated balance sheet, reflecting the fair value of the Forward Transactions. These non-cash issuance
costs will be amortized to interest expense over the contractual term of the Forward Transactions. For the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized $1.6 million and $1.0 million, respectively, of
non-cash interest expense within its condensed consolidated statement of income relating to amortization of these
non-cash issuance costs.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company did not repurchase any of its common shares through
open market purchases. As of March 31, 2015, the remaining authorized capacity under the Company�s share
repurchase program was $232.9 million inclusive of reductions for the Forward Transactions.
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The Company reflects the aggregate purchase price of its common shares repurchased as a reduction to shareholders�
deficit. The Company allocated the purchase price of the repurchased shares to accumulated deficit, common shares
and additional paid-in-capital.

The number of shares issued upon vesting or exercise for certain restricted stock units and SARs granted pursuant to
the Company�s share-based compensation plans is net of the minimum statutory withholding requirements that the
Company pays on behalf of its employees. Although shares withheld are not issued, they are treated as common share
repurchases in the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements, as they reduce the number of shares that
would have been issued upon vesting. These shares do not count against the authorized capacity under the Company�s
share repurchase program described above.

Capped Call Transactions

In connection with the issuance of Convertible Notes, the Company paid approximately $123.8 million to enter into
capped call transactions with respect to its common shares, or the Capped Call Transactions, with certain financial
institutions. The Capped Call Transactions are expected generally to reduce the potential dilution upon conversion of
the Convertible Notes in the event that the market price of the common shares is greater than the strike price of the
Capped Call Transactions, initially set at $86.28 per common share, with such reduction of potential dilution subject
to a cap based on the cap price initially set at $120.79 per common share. The strike price and cap price are subject to
certain adjustments under the terms of the Capped Call Transactions. Therefore, as a result of executing the Capped
Call Transactions, the Company in effect will only be exposed to potential net dilution once the market price of its
common shares exceeds the adjusted cap price. As a result of the Capped Call Transactions, the Company�s additional
paid-in capital within shareholders� deficit on its condensed consolidated balance sheet was reduced by $123.8 million
during the first quarter of 2014.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table summarizes changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) during the three months
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014:

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss) by Component

Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

on
Derivatives

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on

Available-For-
Sale

Investments Total

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

on
Derivatives

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on

Available-For-
Sale

Investments Total
(In millions)

Beginning Balance $ (96.4) $ 18.0 $ 0.2 $ (78.2) $ (25.6) $ 5.7 $ 0.1 $ (19.8) 

Other comprehensive
income (loss) before
reclassifications, net of
tax (54.9) 6.5 (1.8) (50.2) (2.2) (0.1) (2.1) (4.4) 
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Amounts reclassified
from accumulated
other comprehensive
income (loss) to
income, net of tax(1) �  (1.3) 1.5 0.2 �  (0.3) 2.0 1.7

Total other
comprehensive income
(loss), net of
reclassifications (54.9) 5.2 (0.3) (50.0) (2.2) (0.4) (0.1) (2.7) 

Ending balance $ (151.3) $ 23.2 $ (0.1) $ (128.2) $ (27.8) $ 5.3 �  $ (22.5) 

(1) See Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, and Note 9, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, for
information regarding the location in the condensed consolidated statements of income of gains (losses)
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into income during the three months ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014.
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Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications was net of tax benefits of $1.9 million, tax expense of $0.7
million, and tax benefits of $1.0 million for foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gain (loss) on
derivatives, and unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments, respectively, for the three months ended
March 31, 2015. Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to income was net of tax
benefits of $0.1 million and tax expense of $0.8 million for unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives and unrealized gain
(loss) on available-for-sale investments, respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2015.

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications was net of tax benefits of $0.1 million, $0.1 million, and
$1.1 million for foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives, and unrealized gain
(loss) on available-for-sale investments, respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2014. Amounts
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to income was net of tax expense of $1.0 million for
unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale investments for the three months ended March 31, 2014.

11. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share represents net income divided by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share represents net income divided by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding, inclusive of the effect of dilutive securities such as outstanding stock options, SARs,
stock units and warrants.

The following are the common share amounts used to compute the basic and diluted earnings per share for each
period:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2015 2014

(in millions)
Weighted average shares used in basic computations 82.3 95.4
Dilutive effect of exercise of equity grants outstanding 2.3 5.4

Weighted average shares used in diluted computations 84.6 100.8

There were an aggregate of 8.7 million and 2.0 million of equity grants, consisting of stock options, SARs, and stock
units that were outstanding during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, but were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Since the Company will settle the principal amount of its Convertible Notes in cash and settle the conversion feature
for the amount above the conversion price in common shares, or the conversion spread, the Company uses the treasury
stock method for calculating any potential dilutive effect of the conversion spread on diluted earnings per share, if
applicable. The conversion spread will have a dilutive impact on diluted earnings per share when the average market
price of the Company�s common shares for a given period exceeds the initial conversion price of $86.28 per share. For
the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Convertible Notes have been excluded from the computation of
diluted earnings per share as the effect would be anti-dilutive since the conversion price of the Convertible Notes
exceeded the average market price of the Company�s common shares for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
2014. The initial conversion rate and conversion price is described further in Note 4, Long-Term Debt.
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The Capped Call Transactions executed in connection with the issuance of the Convertible Notes are excluded from
the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their impact is always anti-dilutive.

12. Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies the provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, or ASC 820, for its financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. ASC 820 defines
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs used in measuring fair value into three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation
or other means.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The Company measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value as discussed throughout the notes to its consolidated
financial statements. Foreign exchange currency contracts are valued using standard calculations and models primarily
based on inputs such as observable forward rates, spot rates and foreign currency exchange rates at the reporting
period ended date. The Company�s derivative assets and liabilities are measured at fair value and consisted of Level 2
inputs and their amounts are shown below at their gross values at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date

Derivative Balance
Sheet

Location

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level

2)
Fair Value at

March 31,
2015

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)
Fair Value

at
December 31,

2014
(in millions)

ASSETS:
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating
to inventory and intercompany management
fee hedges

Prepaid expenses and other
current assets $ 18.2 $ 12.3

Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign exchange currency contracts Prepaid expenses and other

current assets $ 2.5 $ 2.2

$ 20.7 $ 14.5

LIABILITIES:
Derivatives designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating
to inventory and intercompany management
fee hedges Accrued expenses $ 6.1 $ 1.6
Derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments:
Foreign exchange currency contracts Accrued expenses $ 2.6 $ 3.8

$ 8.7 $ 5.4

The Company�s deferred compensation plan assets consist of Company owned life insurance policies. As these policies
are recorded at their cash surrender value, they are not required to be included in the fair value table above. See Note
6, Employee Compensation Plans, to the Company�s 2014 10-K for a further description of its deferred compensation
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The following tables summarize the offsetting of the fair values of the Company�s derivative assets and derivative
liabilities for presentation in the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014:

Offsetting of Derivative Assets

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized

Assets

Gross
Amounts

Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Net Amounts
of Assets

Presented in
the

Balance
Sheet

(In millions)
March 31, 2015
Foreign exchange currency contracts $ 20.7 $ (7.8) $ 12.9

Total $ 20.7 $ (7.8) $ 12.9

December 31, 2014
Foreign exchange currency contracts $ 14.5 $ (5.4) $ 9.1

Total $ 14.5 $ (5.4) $ 9.1
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Offsetting of Derivative Liabilities

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized
Liabilities

Gross
Amounts

Offset in the
Balance Sheet

Net Amounts
of Liabilities
Presented in
the Balance

Sheet
(In millions)

March 31, 2015
Foreign exchange currency contracts $ 8.7 $ (7.8) $ 0.9

Total $ 8.7 $ (7.8) $ 0.9

December 31, 2014
Foreign exchange currency contracts $ 5.4 $ (5.4) $ �  

Total $ 5.4 $ (5.4) $ �  

The Company offsets all of its derivative assets and derivative liabilities in its condensed consolidated balance sheet to
the extent it maintains master netting arrangements with related financial institutions. As of March 31, 2015, and
December 31, 2014, all of the Company�s derivatives were subject to master netting arrangements and no
collateralization was required for the Company�s derivative assets and derivative liabilities.

13. Professional Fees and Other Expenses

In late 2012, a hedge fund manager publicly raised allegations regarding the legality of the Company�s network
marketing program and announced that the hedge fund manager had taken a significant short position regarding the
Company�s common shares, leading to intense public scrutiny and significant stock price volatility. The Company
believes that the hedge fund manager�s allegations are inaccurate and misleading. The Company has engaged legal and
advisory firms to assist with responding to the allegations and to perform other related services in connection to these
recent events. The Company recognizes the related expenses as a part of selling, general & administrative expenses
within its condensed consolidated statement of income. For both the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014,
the Company recorded approximately $4.3 million of professional fees and other expenses related to this matter.

14. Subsequent Events

On May 4, 2015, the Company amended its Credit Facility to extend the maturity date of its revolving credit facility to
March 9, 2017. The Term Loan will still mature on March 9, 2016. Pursuant to this amendment and upon execution,
the Company was required to make prepayments of approximately $20.3 million and $50.9 million on the Term Loan
and revolving credit facility, respectively. Additionally, the Company�s $700 million borrowing capacity on its
revolving credit facility was reduced by approximately $235.9 million upon execution of this amendment, and will be
further reduced by approximately $39.1 million on September 30, 2015, bringing the total expected available
borrowing capacity on its revolving credit facility to $425.0 million as of September 30, 2015. Until March 9, 2016,
the interest rates on the Company�s borrowings under the Credit Facility, as amended, will effectively remain
unchanged except that the minimum applicable margin will be increased by 0.50%. After March 9, 2016, the
applicable interest rates on the Company�s borrowings under the Credit Facility, as amended, will increase by 2.00%
such that borrowings under the Credit Facility will bear interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin between
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4.00% and 5.00% or the base rate plus the applicable margin between 3.00% and 4.00%. The Credit Facility, as
amended, also restricts the Company�s ability to pay dividends or repurchase its common shares to a maximum of
$233.0 million until maturity and also provides for the grant of security interest on certain additional assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Company incurred approximately $7 million of debt issuance costs in connection
with the amendment.

Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

We are a global nutrition company that sells weight management, targeted nutrition, energy, sports & fitness, and
outer nutrition products. As of March 31, 2015, we sold our products to and through a network of 4.1 million
independent members, or Members, which included approximately 0.3 million in China. In China, we sell our
products through retail stores, sales representatives, sales officers, and independent service providers. Other than in
China, we are in the process of making the terminology change from �distributors� to �Members,� since most of them are
discount customers. We refer to Members that distribute our products and achieve certain qualification requirements
as �sales leaders.�

We pursue our mission of �changing people�s lives� by providing high quality, science-based products to Members and
their customers who seek a healthy lifestyle and we also offer a financially rewarding business opportunity to those
Members who seek part time or full time income. We believe the global obesity epidemic has made our quality
products more relevant and the effectiveness of our distribution network, coupled with geographic expansion, have
been the primary reasons for our success throughout our 35-year operating history. As of March 31, 2015, we sold our
products in 91 countries.

Our products are grouped in four principal categories: weight management; targeted nutrition; energy, sports &
fitness; and outer nutrition, along with literature and promotional items. Our products are often sold through a series
of related products and literature designed to simplify weight management and nutrition for consumers and maximize
our Members� cross-selling opportunities.

Industry-wide factors that affect us and our competitors include the global obesity epidemic and the aging of the
worldwide population, which are driving demand for weight management, nutrition and wellness-related products
along with the global increase in under employment and unemployment which can affect the recruitment and retention
of Members seeking part time or full time income opportunities.
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While we continue to monitor the current global financial environment, we remain focused on the opportunities and
challenges in retailing of our products, recruiting and retaining Members, improving Member productivity, opening
new markets, further penetrating existing markets, globalizing successful Distributor Methods of Operation, or DMOs,
such as Nutrition Clubs and Weight Loss Challenges, introducing new products and globalizing existing products,
developing niche market segments and further investing in our infrastructure. Management also continues to monitor
the Venezuelan market and especially the limited ability to repatriate cash.

We report revenue from our six regions:

� North America;

� Mexico;

� South and Central America;

� EMEA, which consists of Europe, the Middle East and Africa;

� Asia Pacific (excluding China); and

� China.
Volume Points by Geographic Region

A key non-financial measure we focus on is Volume Points on a Royalty Basis, or Volume Points, which is essentially
our weighted average measure of product sales volume. Volume Points, which are unaffected by exchange rates or
price changes, are used by management as a proxy for sales trends because in general, excluding the impact of price
changes, an increase in Volume Points in a particular geographic region or country indicates an increase in our local
currency net sales while a decrease in Volume Points in a particular geographic region or country indicates a decrease
in our local currency net sales.

We assign a Volume Point value to a product when it is first introduced into a market and the value is unaffected by
subsequent exchange rate and price changes. The specific number of Volume Points assigned to a product, and
generally consistent across all markets, is based on a Volume Point to suggested retail price ratio for similar products.
If a product is available in different quantities, the various sizes will have different Volume Point values. In general,
once assigned, a Volume Point value is consistent in each region and country and does not change from year to year.
The reason Volume Points are used in the manner described above is that we use Volume Points for Member
qualification and recognition purposes and therefore we attempt to keep Volume Points for a similar or like product
consistent on a global basis. However, because Volume Points are a function of value rather than product type or size,
they are not a reliable measure for product mix. As an example, an increase in Volume Points in a specific country or
region could mean a significant increase in sales of less expensive products or a marginal increase in sales of more
expensive products.
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014 % Change

(Volume points in millions)
North America 297.8 336.5 (11.5)% 
Mexico 203.4 220.2 (7.6)% 
South & Central America 210.5 227.7 (7.6)% 
EMEA 228.4 202.2 13.0% 
Asia Pacific (excluding China) 265.9 302.1 (12.0)% 
China 113.7 91.1 24.8% 

Worldwide 1,319.7 1,379.8 (4.4)% 

We believe the decrease in worldwide Volume Points for the three months ended March 31, 2015 of 4.4% versus the
prior year period, including declines in Volume Points for the first quarter for North America, Mexico and South &
Central America after increases in the comparable quarters of the prior several years, primarily reflects our Members
adjusting to certain revisions to our operations and Marketing Plan designed to improve the training and retention of
sales leaders. Certain of the revisions and their impact on our results are discussed further below in the applicable
sections of Sales by Geographic Region. We believe the changes to our Marketing Plan, as well as our competitive
strengths and business strategies discussed in greater detail in Item 1 � Business of our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2014, or the 2014 10-K, will contribute to achieving our long-term objective of
sustainable sales growth through retailing, recruiting and retention, despite the decrease in Volume Points in the first
quarter of 2015.

Average Active Sales Leaders by Geographic Region

With the continued expansion of daily consumption DMOs in our different markets and our objective to improve
Member retention, we believe the Average Active Sales Leader is a useful metric. It represents the monthly average
number of sales leaders that place an order, including orders of non-sales leader Members in their downline sales
organization, during a given period. We rely on this metric as an indication of the engagement level of sales leaders,
who are integral to our success, and therefore as an indication of the success of our strategies and execution. Changes
in the Average Active Sales Leader metric may be indicative of potential for changes in annual retention levels and
future sales growth.
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014 % Change

North America 77,480 74,241 4.4% 
Mexico 65,340 63,568 2.8% 
South & Central America 62,971 61,862 1.8% 
EMEA 69,256 54,113 28.0% 
Asia Pacific (excluding China) 74,767 71,627 4.4% 
China 20,277 16,648 21.8% 
Worldwide(1) 357,465 329,902 8.4% 

(1) Worldwide average active sales leaders may not equal the sum of the average active sales leaders in each region
due to the calculation being an average of sales leaders active in a period, not a summation, and the fact that some
sales leaders are active in more than one region but are counted only once in the worldwide amount.

We believe the increase in worldwide Average Active Sales Leaders of 8.4% for the three months ended March 31,
2015 is attributable to the Company�s success in making the Herbalife business opportunity more appealing and in
facilitating Sales Leader success by providing quality products; improved DMOs, including daily consumption
approaches such as Nutrition Clubs; easier access to product; systemized training of Members on our products and
methods; and continued promotion and branding of Herbalife products. We believe the decrease in the rate of increase
for the North America, Mexico and South and Central America regions as compared to the comparable quarters in
recent years was driven by the same factors that lead to the decrease in Volume Points in those regions that are
discussed above. Given the long term and qualitative nature of our strategies, the magnitude of the impact of each
such strategy on Sales Leaders� engagement cannot be quantified and may vary over time and by market.

Number of Sales Leaders and Retention Rates by Geographic Region as of Re-qualification Period

Our compensation system requires each sales leader to re-qualify for such status each year, prior to February, in order
to maintain their 50% discount on products and be eligible to receive royalty payments. In February of each year, we
demote from the rank of sales leader those Members who did not satisfy the re-qualification requirements during the
preceding twelve months. The re-qualification requirement does not apply to new sales leaders (i.e. those who became
sales leaders subsequent to the January re-qualification of the prior year). For the latest twelve month re-qualification
period ending January 2015, approximately 54.2% of our sales leaders, excluding China, Venezuela and Argentina,
re-qualified. We did not require our Venezuelan sales leaders to re-qualify temporarily for the period ended January
2014, and therefore excluded them from the retention calculation for that year, due to product supply limitation
resulting from currency restrictions; the Venezuela re-qualification requirement did however resume for the period
ended January 2015 once the market had time to adjust to supply levels. We did not require our Argentinean sales
leaders to re-qualify temporarily for the period ended January 2015 due to product supply challenges resulting from
importation restrictions, and therefore excluded them from the retention calculation for the year. If Venezuela and
Argentina were included on a normalized basis, the 2015 retention rate would have been 53.4%.

Sales Leaders Statistics (Excluding China) 2015 2014
(In thousands)

January 1 total sales leaders 650.1 625.8
January & February new sales leaders 31.6 33.0
Demoted sales leaders (did not re-qualify)(1) (205.2) (201.2) 
Other sales leaders (resigned, etc) (6.8) (1.5) 
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End of February total sales leaders 469.7 456.1

The statistics below further highlight the calculation for retention.

Sales Leaders Retention (Excluding China) 2015 2014
(In thousands)

Sales leaders needed to re-qualify 426.5 417.7
Demoted sales leaders (did not re-qualify)(1) (195.2) (201.2) 

Total re-qualified 231.3 216.5

Retention rate 54.2% 51.8% 

(1) To provide comparative information, Venezuela sales leaders are excluded from the sales leader retention
calculation for 2015.
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The table below reflects the number of sales leaders as of the end of February of the year indicated (subsequent to the
annual re-qualification date) and sales leader retention rate by year and by region.

Number of Sales Leaders Sales Leaders Retention Rate
2015 2014 2015 2014

North America 88,866 86,129 58.4% 55.1% 
Mexico 83,137 78,818 56.7% 54.2% 
South & Central America 88,392 102,152 52.0% 54.9% 
EMEA 82,025 62,723 68.4% 67.7% 
Asia Pacific (excluding China) 127,252 126,229 43.9% 39.9% 

Total Sales Leaders 469,672 456,051 54.2% 51.8% 
China 32,222 30,037

Worldwide Total Sales Leaders 501,894 486,088

Sales leaders generally purchase our products for resale to other Members and retail consumers. The number of sales
leaders by geographic region as of the quarterly reporting dates will normally be higher than the number of sales
leaders by geographic region as of the re-qualification period because sales leaders who do not re-qualify during the
relevant twelve-month period will be removed from the rank of sales leader the following February. Comparisons of
sales leader totals on a year-to-year basis are indicators of our recruitment and retention efforts in different geographic
regions.

We provide Members with products, support materials, training, special events and a competitive compensation
program. If a Member wants to pursue the Herbalife business opportunity, the Member is responsible for growing his
or her business and personally pays for the sales activities related to attracting new customers and recruiting Members.
Activities may include hosting events such as Herbalife Opportunity Meetings or Success Training Seminars;
advertising Herbalife�s products; purchasing and using promotional materials such as t-shirts, buttons and caps;
utilizing and paying for direct mail and print material such as brochures, flyers, catalogs, business cards, posters and
banners and telephone book listings; purchasing inventory for sale or use as samples; and training and mentoring
customers and recruits on how to use Herbalife products and/or pursue the Herbalife business opportunity.

Retention Rate for 2015 increased from what we consider to be a high level at which it had previously remained
relatively consistent. We believe this increase is the result of efforts we have made to improve the sustainability of
sales leaders� businesses.

Presentation

�Retail sales� represent the suggested retail price of products we sell to our Members and is the gross sales amount
reflected on our invoices. Retail Sales is a Non-GAAP measure which may not be comparable to similarly-titled
measures used by other companies. This is not the price paid to us by our Members. Our Members purchase product
from us at a discount from the suggested retail price. We refer to these discounts as �Distributor Allowance�, and we
refer to retail sales less distributor allowances as �Product Sales�.

Total distributor allowances for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 were 41.1% and 42.4% of Retail
Sales, respectively. Distributor Allowances and Marketing Plan payouts generally utilize 90% to 95% of suggested
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retail price, depending on the product and market, to which we apply discounts of up to 50% for Distributor
Allowances and payout rates of up to 15% for royalty overrides, up to 7% for production bonuses, and approximately
1% for the Mark Hughes bonus. Distributor allowances as a percentage of retail sales may vary by country depending
upon regulatory restrictions that limit or otherwise restrict distributor allowances. We also offer reduced distributor
allowances with respect to certain products worldwide. Each Member�s level of discount is determined by qualification
based on volume of purchases. In cases where a Member has qualified for less than the maximum discount, the
remaining discount, which we also refer to as a wholesale commission, is received by their sponsoring
Members. Therefore, product sales are recognized net of product returns and distributor allowances.

�Net Sales� equal product sales plus �shipping and handling revenues�, and generally represents what we collect.
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We do not have visibility into all of the sales from our Members to their customers, but such a figure would differ
from our reported �retail sales� by factors including (a) the amount of product purchased by our Members for their own
personal consumption and (b) prices charged by our Members to their customers other than our suggested retail prices.
We discuss retail sales because of its fundamental role in our systems, internal controls and operations, and its
correlation to Member discounts and Royalty Overrides. In addition, retail sales is a component of the financial
reports we use to analyze our financial results. However, such a measure is not in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. Retail sales should not be considered in isolation from, nor as a
substitute for, net sales and other consolidated income or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with U.S.
GAAP, or as a measure of profitability or liquidity. A reconciliation of retail sales to net sales is presented below
under Results of Operations.

Our international operations have provided and will continue to provide a significant portion of our total net sales. As
a result, total net sales will continue to be affected by fluctuations in the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies. In
order to provide a framework for assessing how our underlying businesses performed excluding the effect of foreign
currency fluctuations, in addition to comparing the percent change in net sales from one period to another in U.S.
dollars, we also compare the percent change in net sales from one period to another period using �net sales in local
currency�. Net sales in local currency is not a U.S. GAAP financial measure. Net sales in local currency removes from
net sales in U.S. dollars the impact of changes in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the functional currencies
of our foreign subsidiaries, by translating the current period net sales into U.S. dollars using the same foreign currency
exchange rates that were used to translate the net sales for the previous comparable period. We believe presenting net
sales in local currency is useful to investors because it allows a meaningful comparison of net sales of our foreign
operations from period to period. However, net sales in local currency measures should not be considered in isolation
or as an alternative to net sales in U.S. dollar measures that reflect current period exchange rates, or to other financial
measures calculated and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Our �gross profit� consists of net sales less �cost of sales,� which represents our manufacturing costs, the price we
pay to our raw material suppliers and manufacturers of our products as well as shipping and handling costs including
duties, tariffs, and similar expenses.

While all Members can potentially profit from their activities by reselling our products for amounts greater than the
prices they pay us, Members that develop, retain, and manage other Members can earn additional compensation for
those activities, which we refer to as �Royalty overrides.� Royalty overrides are our most significant operating
expense and consist of:

� royalty overrides and production bonuses;

� the Mark Hughes bonus payable to some of our most senior Members; and

� other discretionary incentive cash bonuses to qualifying Members.
During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, total Royalty overrides were 29.2% and 30.2% of our net
sales, respectively. Royalty overrides are compensation to Members for the development, retention and improved
productivity of their sales organizations and are paid to several levels of Members on each sale. Royalty overrides are
compensation for services rendered to us and as such are recorded as an operating expense.
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Due to restrictions on direct selling in China, our independent service providers in China are compensated with
service fees instead of the distributor allowances and royalty overrides utilized in our traditional marketing program.
Compensation to China independent service providers is included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Because of local country regulatory constraints, we may be required to modify our Member incentive plans as
described above. We also pay reduced royalty overrides with respect to certain products worldwide. Consequently, the
total royalty override percentage may vary over time and from the percentages noted above.

Our �contribution margins� consist of net sales less cost of sales and royalty overrides.

�Selling, general and administrative expenses� represent our operating expenses, which include labor and benefits,
service fees to China service providers, sales events, professional fees, travel and entertainment, Member promotions,
occupancy costs, communication costs, bank fees, depreciation and amortization, foreign exchange gains and losses
and other miscellaneous operating expenses.

Our �other expense, net� consists of non-operating expenses such as impairments of available-for-sale investments.

Most of our sales to Members outside the United States are made in the respective local currencies. In preparing our
financial statements, we translate revenues into U.S. dollars using average exchange rates. Additionally, the majority
of our purchases from our suppliers generally are made in U.S. dollars. Consequently, a strengthening of the U.S.
dollar versus a foreign currency can have a negative impact on our reported sales and contribution margins and can
generate foreign currency gains or losses on intercompany transactions. Foreign currency exchange rates can fluctuate
significantly. From time to time, we enter into foreign currency derivatives to partially mitigate our foreign currency
exchange risk as discussed in further detail in Part I, Item 3 � Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market
Risk.
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Summary Financial Results

Net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015 decreased 12.5% to $1,105.4 million as compared to $1,262.6
million for the same period in 2014. In local currency, including the remeasurement impact of Venezuela�s Bolivar
denominated net sales, net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015 increased 3.9% as compared to the same
period in 2014; excluding the remeasurement impact of Venezuela�s Bolivar denominated net sales, net sales in local
currency for the three months ended March 31, 2015 were essentially flat as compared to the same period in 2014. The
decrease in net sales of 12.5% period-over-period was primarily the result of the effect of the strong U.S. Dollar and
the resulting fluctuation in foreign currency rates and a decline in sales volume, as measured by a decrease in Volume
Points, which reduced net sales by approximately 16.3% and 4.4%, respectively. These reductions were partially
offset by the impact of price increases during the last nine months of 2014 and the first quarter of 2015 and a
favorable change in country sales mix resulting from a greater percentage of our sales volume coming from markets
with higher prices, which contributed approximately 4.8% and 2.0% to net sales growth, respectively.

Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2015 increased 4.8% to $78.2 million, or $0.92 per diluted share,
compared to $74.6 million, or $0.74 per diluted share, for the same period in 2014. The increase for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 was primarily due to the lower selling, general and administrative expenses, including lower
foreign exchange losses related to the remeasurement of our Venezuela Bolivar-denominated assets and liabilities
described below, partially offset by higher service fees to China service providers due to sales growth in China, higher
interest expense, and lower contribution margin.

Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2015 included a $36.3 million pre-tax unfavorable impact
($25.2 million post-tax), comprised of a $32.6 million foreign exchange loss related to the remeasurement of
Venezuela Bolivar-denominated assets and liabilities, $1.4 million of inventory write downs, and a $2.3 million
impairment loss on Venezuela bonds (See Liquidity and Capital Resources � Venezuela below for further discussion
of currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela and Other Expense, net below for further discussion of Venezuela
bonds); $12.8 million foreign exchange gain ($10.1 million post-tax) resulting from Euro/U.S. dollar exposure
primarily related to intercompany balances; a $4.3 million pre-tax unfavorable impact ($2.9 million post-tax) related
to legal, advisory services and other expenses for our response to allegations and other negative information put
forward in the marketplace by a hedge fund manager which started in late 2012 (See Selling, General and
Administrative Expenses below for further discussion); a $3.4 million pre-tax unfavorable impact ($2.1 million
post-tax) from expenses related to the Federal Trade Commission�s, or the FTC�s, Civil Investigative Demand, or CID;
a $10.5 million unfavorable impact of non-cash interest expense related to the Convertible Notes and the Forward
Transactions (See Liquidity and Capital Resources � Convertible Senior Notes below for further discussion), and a
$0.1 million pre-tax unfavorable impact ($0.1 million post-tax) related to expenses incurred for the recovery of costs
associated with the re-audit of our 2010 to 2012 financial statements after the resignation of KPMG as our
independent registered public accounting firm.

The income tax impact of the expenses discussed above is based on forecasted items affecting our 2015 full year
effective tax rate. Adjustments to forecasted items unrelated to these expenses, as well as impacts related to interim
reporting, will have an effect on the income tax impact of these items in subsequent periods.

Net income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 included an $89.3 million pre-tax unfavorable impact ($66.6
million post-tax), comprised of an $86.1 million foreign exchange loss related to the remeasurement of Venezuela
Bolivar-denominated assets and liabilities at the SICAD I rate of 10.7 Bolivars per U.S. dollar and a $3.2 million
impairment loss on Venezuela bonds; a $4.3 million pre-tax unfavorable impact ($3.3 million post-tax) related to
legal, advisory services and other expenses for the Company�s response to allegations and other negative information
put forward in the marketplace by a hedge fund manager which started in late 2012; a $0.9 million pre-tax unfavorable
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impact ($0.7 million post-tax) from expenses related to the FTC�s CID; and $5.8 million unfavorable impact of
non-cash interest expense related to the Convertible Notes and the Forward Transactions.

Results of Operations

Our results of operations for the periods below are not necessarily indicative of results of operations for future periods,
which depend upon numerous factors, including our ability to recruit new Members and retain sales leaders, further
penetrate existing markets, introduce new products and programs that will help our Members increase their retail
efforts and develop niche market segments.
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The following table sets forth selected results of our operations expressed as a percentage of net sales for the periods
indicated:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2015
March 31,

2014
Operations:
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of sales 19.5 19.9

Gross profit 80.5 80.1
Royalty overrides(1) 29.2 30.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses(1) 39.0 39.8

Operating income 12.3 10.1
Interest expense, net 2.0 1.2
Other expense, net 0.2 0.2

Income before income taxes 10.1 8.7
Income taxes 3.0 2.8

Net income 7.1% 5.9% 

(1) Service fees to our independent service providers in China are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses while Member compensation for all other countries is included in royalty overrides.

Reporting Segment Results

We aggregate our operating segments, excluding China, into one reporting segment, or the Primary Reporting
Segment. The Primary Reporting Segment includes the North America, Mexico, South & Central America, EMEA,
and Asia Pacific regions. China has been identified as a separate reporting segment primarily due to the regulatory
environment in China. See Note 6, Segment Information, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion of our reporting segments. See below for discussions of net sales and contribution margin by our
reporting segments.

Net Sales by Reporting Segment

The Primary Reporting Segment reported net sales of $941.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015,
representing a decrease of $185.6 million, or 16.5%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, including the remeasurement impact of Venezuela�s Bolivar denominated net
sales, net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015 increased 1.5% as compared to the same period in 2014 for
the Primary Reporting Segment; excluding the remeasurement impact of Venezuela�s Bolivar denominated net sales,
net sales in local currency for the three months ended March 31, 2015 decreased 3.1% as compared to the same period
in 2014 for the Primary Reporting Segment. The 16.5% period-over-period decrease in net sales for the Primary
Reporting Segment was primarily the result of the effect of the strong U.S. Dollar and the resulting impact of
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fluctuations in foreign currency rates and a decline in sales volume, as measured by a decrease in Volume Points,
which reduced net sales by approximately 18.0% and 6.4%, respectively. These reductions to net sales were partially
offset by price increases during the last nine months of 2014 and first quarter of 2015 which contributed
approximately 5.6% to net sales.

China reported net sales of $164.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, representing an increase of
$28.4 million, or 20.9%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. In local
currency net sales for three months ended March 31, 2015 increased 23.4% as compared to the same period in 2014
for China. The 20.9% increase in China net sales was driven primarily by an increase in sales volume, as measured by
an increase in Volume Points, which increased net sales by approximately 24.8% period-over-period, but was partially
offset by the impact of fluctuations in the foreign currency exchange rate, which decreased net sales by 2.6%.

Contribution Margin by Reporting Segment

As discussed above under �Presentation,� contribution margin consists of net sales less cost of sales and royalty
overrides.

The Primary Reporting Segment reported contribution margin of $419.0 million or 44.5% of net sales for the three
months ended March 31, 2015, representing a decrease of $86.2 million, or 17.1%, for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. The 17.1% decrease was primarily the result of fluctuations
in the foreign currency rates and declines in volume, as measured by a decrease in Volume Points, which reduced
contribution margin by approximately 23.4% and 6.4%, respectively, partially offset by the favorable impact of price
increases and change in country mix, which increased contribution margin by approximately 8.2% and 1.6%,
respectively.

China reported a contribution margin of $148.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, representing an
increase of $23.6 million, or 19.0%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in
2014. The 19.0% increase was primarily the result of a volume increase, as measured by an increase in Volume
Points, which increased contribution margin by approximately 24.8%, but was partially offset by a 2.2% unfavorable
impact related to fluctuations in the foreign currency rate.

Sales by Geographic Region

The following chart reconciles retail sales to net sales by geographic region:
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014

Retail
Sales(1)

Distributor
Allowance

Product
Sales

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues

Net
Sales

Retail
Sales(1)

Distributor
Allowance

Product
Sales

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues

Net
Sales

Change in
Net

Sales
(In millions)

North
America $ 372.4 $ (167.1) $ 205.3 $ 21.4 $ 226.7 $ 411.8 $ (187.3) $ 224.5 $ 23.3 $ 247.8 (8.5)% 
Mexico 212.1 (96.0) 116.1 7.5 123.6 245.7 (111.8) 133.9 8.8 142.7 (13.4)% 
South &
Central
America 266.2 (123.6) 142.6 19.1 161.7 385.8 (177.1) 208.7 36.0 244.7 (33.9)% 
EMEA 320.2 (145.2) 175.0 11.4 186.4 363.5 (164.5) 199.0 12.2 211.2 (11.7)% 
Asia
Pacific 390.6 (164.7) 225.9 16.9 242.8 446.1 (191.6) 254.5 25.9 280.4 (13.4)% 
China 183.8 (20.4) 163.4 0.8 164.2 155.6 (20.1) 135.5 0.3 135.8 20.9% 

Worldwide $ 1,745.3 $ (717.0) $ 1,028.3 $ 77.1 $ 1,105.4 $ 2,008.5 $ (852.4) $ 1,156.1 $ 106.5 $ 1,262.6 (12.5)% 

(1) Retail Sales is a Non-GAAP measure which may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures used by other
companies.

Changes in net sales are directly associated with the retailing of our products, recruitment of Members, and retention
of sales leaders. Our strategies include providing quality products, improved DMOs, including daily consumption
approaches such as Nutrition Clubs, easier access to product, systemized training of Members on our products and
methods, and continued promotion and branding of Herbalife products.

Management�s role, both in-country and at the region and corporate level, is to provide Members with a competitive
and broad product line, encourage strong teamwork and Member leadership and offer leading edge business tools and
technology services to make doing business with Herbalife simple. Management uses the Member marketing program
coupled with educational and motivational tools and promotions to encourage Members to increase retailing,
retention, and recruiting, which in turn affect net sales. Such tools include Company sponsored sales events such as
Extravaganzas, Leadership Development Weekends and World Team Schools where large groups of Members gather,
thus allowing them to network with other Members, learn retailing, retention, and recruiting techniques from our
leading Members and become more familiar with how to market and sell our products and business opportunities.
Accordingly, management believes that these development and motivation programs increase the productivity of the
sales leader network. The expenses for such programs are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.
We also use event and non-event product promotions to motivate Members to increase retailing, retention, and
recruiting activities. These promotions have prizes ranging from qualifying for events to product prizes and vacations.
The costs of these promotions are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

DMOs are being generated in many of our markets and are globalized where applicable through the combined efforts
of Members and country, regional and corporate management. While we support a number of different DMOs, one of
the most popular DMOs is daily consumption. Under our traditional DMO, a Member typically sells to its customers
on a somewhat infrequent basis (e.g., monthly) which provides fewer opportunities for interaction with their
customers. Under a daily consumption DMO, a Member interacts with its customers on a more frequent basis which
enables the Member to better educate and advise customers about nutrition and the proper use of the products and
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helps promote daily usage as well, thereby helping the Member grow his or her business. Specific examples of DMOs
include the Club concept in Mexico, Premium Herbalife Opportunity Meetings in Korea, the Healthy Breakfast
concept in Russia, and the Internet/Sampling and Weight Loss Challenge in the U.S. Management�s strategy is to
review the applicability of expanding successful country initiatives throughout a region, and where appropriate,
financially support the globalization of these initiatives.

The factors described above have helped Members increase their business, which in turn helps drive Volume Point
growth in our business, and thus, net sales growth. The discussion below of net sales details some of the specific
drivers of our business and causes of sales fluctuations during the three months ended March 31, 2015 as compared to
the same period in 2014, as well as the unique growth or contraction factors specific to certain geographic regions or
significant countries within a region during these periods. Net sales fluctuations, both Company-wide and within a
particular geographic region or country, are primarily the result of changes in volume, changes in prices, and/or
changes in foreign currency translation rates. The discussion of changes in net sales quantifies the impact of those
drivers that are quantifiable such as changes in foreign currency translation rates, and cites any significant price
changes. The remaining drivers, which Management believes are the primary drivers of changes in volume, are
typically qualitative factors whose impact cannot be quantified.
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North America

The North America region reported net sales of $226.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Net sales
decreased $21.1 million, or 8.5%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in
2014. In local currency, net sales decreased 8.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. The decrease in net sales in the region for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared
to the same period in 2014, was a result of net sales decrease in the U.S. of $20.4 million, or 8.4%. Product prices in
the US were increased 3% in March 2014.

We believe the net sales decline for the quarter, after increases in net sales for the comparable periods in recent years,
is a result of Members adapting to certain revisions to our operations and marketing plan designed to improve the
training and retention of sales leaders. While most Members are not sales leaders, those wishing to become sales
leaders have three qualification methods to do so. Prior to 2009, there was only the one-month sales leader
qualification method or the two-month sales leader qualification method. However, in 2009 we revised our marketing
plan to enable Members to also qualify for sales leader status over a 12-month period. Since implementation in 2009,
sales leaders who utilized the 12-month sales leader qualification method have performed better in terms of activity
and retention rates. To further promote the 12-month sales leader qualification method, in the third quarter of 2014 we
announced the implementation, effective February 2015, of a first-order limit for new Members and in November
2014, we reduced the number of Volume Points required to be accumulated over the 12-month period from 5,000 to
4,000. See Item 1, �Business � Our Strategies � Improve the Sustainability of Members� Businesses� in the 2014 10-K for
additional information. We believe that the changes, while good for our business in the long-term, take time and create
distraction which has slowed our sales in North America while the market adapts to the changes. Additionally, the
changes also lead to a temporary slowdown in sales because some sales that previously would have taken place over a
shorter 1-2 month period are deferred up to 12 months or longer as a Member works towards possible sales leader
qualification.

We also believe our new certification of understanding requirements, a key training point for new Members,
implemented in North America in 2014, has negatively impacted net sales in the short term as Members adapt to the
new requirement. Under this requirement, all new Members must certify they have been trained and understand our
standards or their buying privileges are suspended.

Mexico

The Mexico region reported net sales of $123.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Net sales for the
three months ended March 31, 2015 decreased $19.1 million, or 13.4%, as compared to the same period in 2014. In
local currency, net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015 decreased 2.1%, as compared to the same period
in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $16.1 million on net sales for the three
months ended March 31, 2015. Mexico had price increases accumulating to approximately 4% subsequent to the first
quarter of 2014, inclusive of price increases to partially recover new excise taxes imposed on certain products.

Mexico net sales have decreased, after increases for the comparable quarters in recent years, primarily as a result of
Members adjusting to certain revisions to our operations and marketing plan designed to improve the training and
retention of sales leaders, such as a shift in emphasis to the longer-term qualification method described above for the
North America region, which was also implemented in Mexico in 2009, and which we believe has had a similar effect
on the long-term net sales trend in Mexico. We have also implemented rules that require Members attempting to
qualify for sales leader status to purchase directly from Herbalife rather than from their sponsor Member (these
transactions with the sponsor Member are known as �field sales�). With our investment in product access points in
Mexico over the past few years, field sales are no longer necessary for geographic reach within the country. Therefore,
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in the third quarter of 2014 we announced that, effective February 2015, field sales would no longer count towards
Sales Leader qualification. Field sales were particularly common in Mexico and this change has had a significant and
adverse impact on sales in Mexico as Members revise their operations and purchasing habits accordingly.

South and Central America

The South and Central America region reported net sales of $161.7 million for the three months ended March 31,
2015. Net sales decreased $83.0 million, or 33.9%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, including the re-measurement impact of Venezuela�s Bolivar denominated net
sales, net sales increased 15.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014.
The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $121.4 million on net sales for the three
months ended March 31, 2015. The decrease in net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to
the same period in 2014, was driven by the adverse impact of foreign currency fluctuations, primarily for the
Venezuelan Bolivar, partially offset by the impact of volume and price increases in the Venezuela market.

Although the region has continued to see the adoption and expansion of daily consumption DMOs, we believe the
decline in net sales for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 as compared to growth in the comparable quarters in recent
years was a result of Members adjusting to certain revisions to our operations and marketing plan designed to improve
the training and retention of sales leaders, such as the shift in focus to our longer-term sales leader qualification
method described above for the North America region, which was also implemented in the South and Central
American region in 2009, and which we believe has had a similar effect on the long-term net sales trend in the region.

In Brazil, the region�s largest market, net sales decreased $24.9 million, or 23.8%, for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales decreased 7.8% for the three
months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had
an unfavorable impact of $16.8 million on net sales in Brazil for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Brazil had a
5% price increase in March 2014 and a 6% increase in March 2015. Brazil�s net sales declined for the quarter as Sales
Leaders continue to adapt to Marketing Plan changes to encourage Members to take advantage of the longer-term
Sales Leader qualification methods.

Net sales in Venezuela decreased $47.3 million, or 87.1%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to
the same period in 2014. Significant Bolivar-to-dollar exchange rate deterioration was partially offset by the impact of
price increases in the market. Sales volume was slightly higher. In July 2014, Herbalife Venezuela increased its prices
on certain products in response to an announcement by the Venezuelan government with respect to the calculation of
Bolivar-denominated duties on U.S. dollar shipments using a default SICAD II rate if shipments are not settled using
the SICAD I or CENCOEX exchange rates. These price increases, other subsequent price increases on certain
products over the remainder of 2014, and a further 100% price increase in March 2015 were implemented to better
align product prices with the economic conditions of the market. During the second and third quarters of 2014, we
remeasured our net sales in Venezuela using the SICAD I rate instead of the previous CADIVI rate of 6.3 Venezuelan
Bolivars per U.S. dollar. During the fourth quarter of 2014, we remeasured our net sales in Venezuela using the
SICAD II rate. During February 2015, we began remeasuring our net sales in Venezuela using the SIMADI rate. We
continue to monitor and assess our product pricing in Venezuela. See Liquidity and Capital Resources � Working
Capital and Operating Activities below for further discussion of currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela and our
evaluation of several options to reduce our economic exposure to this market.
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EMEA

The EMEA region reported net sales of $186.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Net sales
decreased $24.8 million, or 11.7%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in
2014. The decrease in net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015, after increases for the comparable quarter
in recent years, was greatest in Russia and the UK, but was widespread across countries in the region primarily due to
the adverse impact of foreign currency fluctuations. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable
impact of $54.3 million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. In local currency, net sales increased
13.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. Constant currency growth
was led by Russia and Italy.

Net sales in Russia decreased $8.2 million, or 24.1%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales increased 35.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $20.2
million on net sales in Russia for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Product prices in Russia were increased
14% in March 2015 and 7% in June 2014. Russia�s Members have been early adopters of many of the concepts
captured in our recent Marketing Plan changes, including the more gradual promotion of certain new Members to
Sales Leader through the longer-term qualification methods, which we believe improves sustainability of Sales
Leaders� businesses. Russia�s Sales Leader retention rate for 2014 was higher than the Company average. Investments
in increased product access have been key to supporting continued growth.

Net sales in Italy decreased $2.1 million, or 6.3%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales increased 13.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $6.7
million on net sales in Italy for the three months ended March 31, 2015. We believe Italy�s adoption of longer-term
Sales Leader qualification methods will improve sustainability of new Sales Leaders� businesses and provide long-term
benefits as it allows new Members to get experience, improved training and additional education about Herbalife
products, daily consumption based DMOs and the business opportunity prior to becoming a sales leader. This
adoption has been augmented with the use of a regular organized training approach.

Net sales in Spain decreased $1.5 million, or 7.1%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales in Spain increased 13.1% for the three months ended March 31,
2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of
$4.2 million on net sales in Spain for the three months ended March 31, 2015. We have continued to increase the
number of Member access points in Spain.

Net sales in the United Kingdom decreased $5.3 million, or 28.1%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales in the United Kingdom decreased 21.4% for the
three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency
rates had an unfavorable impact of $1.2 million on net sales in the United Kingdom for the three months ended
March 31, 2015. The United Kingdom had a price increase of 3% in June 2014. Following several years of significant
growth the United Kingdom market has seen a decline. The impact of Marketing Plan changes and new DMOs
recently implemented will take time for Members to learn and apply. Management believes these changes will lead to
more sustainable growth in the future.

Asia Pacific
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The Asia Pacific region, which excludes China, reported net sales of $242.8 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2015. Net sales decreased $37.6 million, or 13.4%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales decreased 9.7% for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable
impact of $10.3 million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. The decrease in net sales for the three
months ended March 31, 2015 was driven primarily by a decline in South Korea. We believe sales declines in South
Korea and several other countries, which drove the decline in the region, were the result of Members adjusting to
certain revisions to our operations and Marketing Plan designed to improve the training and retention of sales leaders,
such as the shift in focus to our longer-term sales leader qualification method described above for the North America
region, which was also implemented in the Asia Pacific region in 2009, and which we believe has had a similar effect
on the long-term net sales trend in the region.

Net sales in South Korea decreased $27.2 million, or 27.5%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared
to the same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales decreased 25.3% for the three months ended March 31, 2015,
as compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $2.1
million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. South Korea has been negatively impacted by a shift
in emphasis toward the longer-term Sales Leader qualification method, as well as other South Korea-specific
Marketing Plan enhancements, while the market adapts to these changes.

Net sales in India increased $2.3 million, or 5.8%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales increased 6.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $0.3
million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. We have increased product access within the India
market and supported the adoption of daily consumption DMOs, especially the Nutrition Club. Early implementation
of first order limitations and the shift of focus to towards longer-term Sales Leader qualification methods had a
positive effect on Sales Leader ordering and retention.
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Net sales in Taiwan decreased $0.8 million, or 2.5%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the
same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales increased 1.5% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $1.3
million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Taiwan had a 2.5% price increase in July 2014.
Taiwan volumes have been negatively impacted as the market adapts to a shift in emphasis towards longer-term Sales
Leader qualification methods.

Net sales in Indonesia decreased $7.1 million, or 23.6%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to
the same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales decreased 17.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $1.9
million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Indonesia has been negatively impacted as the market
adapts to a shift towards longer-term Sales Leader qualification methods. Also, sales for certain products that have
been removed from the marketplace to be reformulated declined approximately $1.4 million compared to the prior
year period.

Net sales in Malaysia decreased $5.7 million, or 28.8%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to
the same period in 2014. In local currency, net sales decreased 21.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to the same period in 2014. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $1.4
million on net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Areas of insufficient training during a period of
strong growth in Nutrition Home Clubs contributed to a decline in the number and productivity of clubs. We are
working with Member leadership in Malaysia to address these training issues. The market has also been negatively
impacted while the market adapts to Marketing Plan changes such as first order limitations.

China

Net sales in China were $164.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Net sales increased $28.4 million,
or 20.9%, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. In local currency, net
sales increased 23.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014. The
fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $3.5 million on net sales for the three months ended
March 31, 2015.

We have seen continued adoption and acculturation of daily consumption DMOs in the China market, aided by
continued acceptance of a Customer Loyalty program which was launched during 2013. We have also implemented
on-line ordering in China, and extended our product line with several new product introductions.

Sales by Product Category

Three Months Ended March 31,
2015 2014

Retail
Sales(2)

Distributor
Allowance

Product
Sales

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues

Net
Sales

Retail
Sales(2)

Distributor
Allowance

Product
Sales

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues

Net
Sales

% Change in
Net

Sales
(In millions)

Weight
Management $ 1,134.7 $ (481.0) $ 653.7 $ 50.2 $ 703.9 $ 1,313.5 $ (575.5) $ 738.0 $ 69.6 $ 807.6 (12.8)% 

406.1 (172.1) 234.0 17.9 251.9 461.8 (202.3) 259.5 24.5 284.0 (11.3)% 
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Targeted
Nutrition
Energy,
Sports and
Fitness 96.8 (41.0) 55.8 4.3 60.1 108.5 (47.6) 60.9 5.8 66.7 (9.9)% 
Outer
Nutrition 57.1 (24.2) 32.9 2.5 35.4 64.6 (28.3) 36.3 3.4 39.7 (10.8)% 
Literature,
Promotional
and Other(1) 50.6 1.3 51.9 2.2 54.1 60.1 1.3 61.4 3.2 64.6 (16.3)% 

Total $ 1,745.3 $ (717.0) $ 1,028.3 $ 77.1 $ 1,105.4 $ 2,008.5 $ (852.4) $ 1,156.1 $ 106.5 $ 1,262.6 (12.5)% 

(1) Product buy backs and returns in all product categories are included in literature, promotional and other category
(2) Retail Sales is a Non-GAAP measure which may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures used by other

companies.
Net sales for all product categories decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2015 as compared to the same
period in 2014. The trend and business factors described in the above discussions of the individual geographic regions
apply generally to all product categories.

32

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 64



Table of Contents

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $890.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to $1,011.4 million for the
same period in 2014 representing a decrease of $121.4 million or 12.0%. As a percentage of net sales, gross profit for
the three months ended March 31, 2015 increased to 80.5% as compared to 80.1% for the same period in 2014. The 40
basis point net increase included the favorable impact of retail price increases of 107 basis points primarily related to
the price increases in Venezuela, lower inventory write-downs of 23 basis points and country mix of 17 basis points,
partially offset by the unfavorable impact of foreign currency fluctuations of 114 basis points primarily related to the
currency devaluation in Venezuela. Generally, the gross profit as percentage of net sales may vary from period to
period due to the impact from foreign currency fluctuations, changes in country mix as volume changes among
countries with varying margins, retail price increases, cost savings through sourcing optimization and
self-manufacturing, and inventory write-downs.

Royalty Overrides

Royalty overrides were $323.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to $381.8 million for
the same period in 2014. Royalty overrides as a percentage of net sales was 29.2% for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, as compared to 30.2% for the same period in 2014. The decrease of royalty overrides as a percentage
of net sales was primarily due to the higher growth of our China business relative to that of our worldwide
business. Compensation to our independent service providers in China is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses as opposed to royalty overrides where it is included for all other Members. Generally, this
royalty overrides percentage may vary from period to period due to changes in the mix of products and countries
because full royalty overrides are not paid on certain products and in certain countries.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $431.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to $502.1 million for the same period in 2014. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of net sales were 39.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to 39.8% for the same period in
2014.

The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2015 was primarily
due to $70.2 million in lower net foreign exchange losses, which included $53.5 million in lower net foreign exchange
losses during the first quarter of 2015 related to the remeasurement of our Bolivar-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the SIMADI rate in the amount of $32.6 million, as compared to the $86.1 million net foreign exchange
loss during the first quarter of 2014 related to the remasurement of our Bolivar-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the SICAD I rate (See Liquidity and Capital Resources � Working Capital and Operating Activities, for
further discussion of currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela) and also included $12.8 million in foreign exchange
gain resulting from Euro/U.S. dollar exposure primarily related to intercompany balances; $5.6 million in lower travel
expenses due to cost control initiatives; $4.1 million in lower Member promotion and event costs; partially offset by
$17.0 million in higher service fees to China independent service providers related to sales growth in China and $2.5
million in higher expenses related to the FTC�s CID.

In late 2012, a hedge fund manager publicly raised allegations regarding the legality of our network marketing
program and announced that the hedge fund manager had taken a significant short position regarding our common
shares, leading to intense public scrutiny and significant stock price volatility. We have engaged legal and advisory
services firms to assist with responding to the allegations and to perform other related services in connection to these
events. For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, we recorded approximately $4.3 million of expenses
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related to this matter for both periods, which includes approximately $3.9 million and $4.0 million, respectively, of
legal, advisory and other professional service fees. We expect to continue to incur expenses related to this matter over
the next several periods and the expenses are expected to vary from period to period.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense is as follows:

Three Months Ended

Net Interest Expense
March 31,

2015
March 31,

2014
(In millions)

Interest expense $ 23.4 $ 17.8
Interest income (1.9) (2.9) 

Net interest expense $ 21.5 $ 14.9

The increase in net interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in
2014, was primarily due to our issuance of $1.15 billion senior convertible notes in February 2014, including both
cash and non-cash interest expense, discussed in Liquidity and Capital Resources below.
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Other expense, net

Other expense, net was $2.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to $3.2 million for the
same period in 2014. Other expense, net as a percentage of net sales was 0.2% for both the three months ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014. The decrease in the other expense, net, for the three ended March 31, 2015, as compared to
the same period in 2014, was due to lower other than temporary impairment losses recognized during the three months
ended March 31, 2015 as compared to the same period in 2014 related to our investments in Bolivar-denominated
bonds.

Income Taxes

Income taxes were $33.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as compared to $34.8 million for the
same period in 2014. The effective income tax rate was 30.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2015, as
compared to 31.8% for the same period in 2014. The decrease in the effective tax rate for the three months ended
March 31, 2015, as compared to the same period in 2014, was primarily due to a decrease in net expenses from
discrete events, partially offset by the impact of changes in the geographic mix of our income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically met our working capital and capital expenditure requirements, including funding for expansion
of operations, through net cash flows provided by operating activities. Variations in sales of our products directly
affect the availability of funds. There are no material contractual restrictions on our ability to transfer and remit funds
among our international affiliated companies. However, there are foreign currency restrictions in certain countries,
such as Venezuela as discussed below, which could reduce our ability to timely obtain U.S. dollars. Even with these
restrictions, we believe we will have sufficient resources, including cash flow from operating activities and access to
capital markets, to meet debt service obligations in a timely manner and be able to continue to meet our objectives.

Our existing debt has not resulted from the need to fund our normal operations, but instead has resulted primarily from
our previous and ongoing share repurchase program. Since inception in 2007, total share repurchases amounted to
approximately $3.1 billion. While a significant net sales decline could potentially affect the availability of funds,
many of our largest expenses are variable in nature, which we believe protects our funding in all but a dramatic net
sales downturn. Our $715.5 million cash and cash equivalents and our senior secured credit facility in addition to cash
flow from operations, can be used to support general corporate purposes, including, capital expenditures, share
repurchases, and strategic investment opportunities.

We have a cash pooling arrangement with a financial institution for cash management purposes. This cash pooling
arrangement allows certain of our participating subsidiaries to withdraw cash from this financial institution based
upon our aggregate cash deposits held by subsidiaries who participate in the cash pooling arrangement. We did not
owe any amounts to this financial institution under the pooling arrangement as of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014.

For the three months ended March 31, 2015, we generated $161.1 million of operating cash flow, as compared to
$190.6 million for the same period in 2014. The decrease in our operating cash flow was the result of slightly higher
net income offset by lower non-cash items, which included the foreign exchange losses, impairment losses and other
asset write-downs related to Venezuela; partially offset by net favorable changes in operating assets and liabilities.
The change in operating assets and liabilities was primarily the result of changes in prepaid expenses and other current
assets which included lower prepayments resulting from financing an annual system support contract and lower
prepaid non-income taxes; changes in accrued expenses and accrued compensation primarily related to lower
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employee bonus payments; partially offset by changes in royalty overrides primarily related to sales fluctuations.

Capital expenditures, including accrued capital expenditures, for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
were $15.4 million and $49.7 million, respectively. The majority of these expenditures represented investments in
manufacturing facilities domestically and internationally, management information systems, initiatives to develop
web-based Member tools, and the expansion of our warehouse and sales centers. We expect to incur total capital
expenditures of approximately $120 million to $140 million for the full year of 2015.

In March 2015, Herbalife hosted its annual global Herbalife Summit event in Los Angeles, California, where
President Team members from around the world met and shared best practices, conducted leadership training and
Herbalife management awarded Members $72.4 million of Mark Hughes bonus payments related to their 2014
performance. In March 2014, Herbalife management awarded Members $71.6 million of Mark Hughes bonus
payments related to their 2013 performance.
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Senior Secured Credit Facility

We currently have a senior secured credit facility, or the Credit Facility, with a syndicate of financial institutions as
lenders which consists of a $700.0 million revolving credit facility and a $500.0 million term loan, or the Term Loan.
The Credit Facility has a five year maturity and expires on March 9, 2016. We will make regular scheduled payments
for the Term Loan consisting of both principal and interest components. The Credit Facility requires us to comply
with a leverage ratio and a coverage ratio. In addition, the Credit Facility contains customary covenants, including
covenants that limit or restrict our ability to incur liens, incur indebtedness, make investments, dispose of assets, make
certain restricted payments, pay dividends, repurchase our common shares, merge or consolidate and enter into certain
transactions with affiliates. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we were compliant with our debt
covenants under the Credit Facility.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we repaid a total amount of $25.0 million under the Credit Facility.
Our cash and cash equivalents provided by our borrowings provide us with greater flexibility to execute strategic
initiatives and to be opportunistically responsive to future events. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the
U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility was $825.0 million and $850.0 million, respectively. Of the
$825.0 million U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility as of March 31, 2015, $325.0 million was
outstanding on the Term Loan and $500.0 million was outstanding on the revolving credit facility. Of the $850.0
million U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2014, $350.0 million was
outstanding on the Term Loan and $500.0 million was outstanding on the revolving credit facility. There were no
outstanding foreign currency borrowings as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 under the Credit Facility. On
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the weighted average interest rate for borrowings under the Credit Facility,
including borrowings under the Term Loan, was 2.69% and 3.04%, respectively.

See Note 4, Long-Term Debt, and Note 14, Subsequent Events, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
for a further discussion on our Credit Facility.

Convertible Senior Notes

During February 2014, we issued $1.15 billion aggregate principal amount of convertible senior notes, or the
Convertible Notes. The Convertible Notes are senior unsecured obligations which rank effectively subordinated to any
of our existing and future secured indebtedness, including amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility, to the extent
of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness. The Convertible Notes pay interest at a rate of 2.00% per annum
payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning on August 15, 2014. The
Convertible Notes mature on August 15, 2019, unless earlier repurchased or converted. The primary purpose of the
issuance of the Convertible Notes was for share repurchase purposes. See Note 4, Long-Term Debt, to the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion on our Convertible Notes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had no material off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in
Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K.

Dividends

The declaration of future dividends is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon various
factors, including our earnings, financial condition, Herbalife Ltd.�s available distributable reserves under Cayman
Islands law, restrictions imposed by the Credit Facility and the terms of any other indebtedness that may be
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outstanding, cash requirements, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. The
Credit Facility permits payments of dividends as long as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated
leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not exceeded.

There were no dividends declared and paid during the three months ended March 31, 2015. The aggregate amount of
dividends declared and paid during the three months ended March 31, 2014 was $30.4 million.

See Note 10, Shareholders� Deficit, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of
dividends.

Share Repurchases

Our board of directors has authorized a $1.5 billion share repurchase program that will expire on June 30, 2017. This
share repurchase program allows us to repurchase our common shares, at such times and prices as determined by us as
market conditions warrant, and to the extent Herbalife Ltd.�s distributable reserves are available under Cayman Islands
law. The Credit Facility permits us to repurchase our common shares as long as no default or event of default exists
and the consolidated leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not exceeded.
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In conjunction with the issuance of the Convertible Notes during February 2014, we paid approximately $685.8
million to enter into prepaid forward share repurchase transactions, or the Forward Transactions, with certain financial
institutions, or the Forward Counterparties, pursuant to which we purchased approximately 9.9 million common
shares for settlement on or around the August 15, 2019 maturity date for the Convertible Notes, subject to the ability
of each Forward Counterparty to elect to settle all or a portion of its Forward Transactions early.

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we did not repurchase any of our common shares through open
market purchases. As of March 31, 2015, the remaining authorized capacity under our share repurchase program was
$232.9 million inclusive of reductions for the Forward Transactions. See Note 10, Shareholders� Deficit, to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of share repurchases.

Capped Call Transactions

In connection with the issuance of Convertible Notes, we paid approximately $123.8 million to enter into capped call
transactions with respect to our common shares, or the Capped Call Transactions, with certain financial institutions.
The Capped Call Transactions are expected generally to reduce the potential dilution upon conversion of the
Convertible Notes in the event that the market price of the common shares is greater than the strike price of the
Capped Call Transactions, initially set at $86.28 per common share, with such reduction of potential dilution subject
to a cap based on the cap price initially set at $120.79 per common share. See Note 10, Shareholders� Deficit, to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of the Capped Call Transactions.

Working Capital and Operating Activities

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had positive working capital of $259.3 million and $518.6 million,
respectively, or a decrease of $259.3 million. This decrease was primarily due to the increase in the current portion of
long-term debt as $404.3 million of the Credit Facility primarily relating to the term loan will be paid by March 9,
2016; a decrease in inventory; partially offset by an increase in cash and cash equivalents and a decrease in royalty
overrides.

We expect that cash and funds provided from operations, available borrowings under the Credit Facility, and access to
capital markets will provide sufficient working capital to operate our business, to make expected capital expenditures
and to meet foreseeable liquidity requirements, including payment of amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility,
for the next twelve months and thereafter. In May 2015, the Company amended the Credit Facility as described
further in Note 14, Subsequent Events.

The majority of our purchases from suppliers are generally made in U.S. dollars, while sales to our Members generally
are made in local currencies. Consequently, strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus a foreign currency can have a
negative impact on net sales and contribution margins and can generate transaction gains or losses on intercompany
transactions. For discussion of our foreign exchange contracts and other hedging arrangements, see Part I, Item 3 �
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Venezuela

Currency Restrictions

Herbalife Venezuela currently imports it products into Venezuela. Foreign exchange controls in that country limit
Herbalife Venezuela�s ability to repatriate earnings and settle its intercompany obligations at any official rate. As a
result, our Bolivar-denominated cash and cash equivalents have continued to accumulate, increasing the potential

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 71



impact of any currency devaluation. The current operating environment in Venezuela also continues to be challenging
for our Venezuela business, with high inflation, price controls, and the risk that the government will further devalue
the Bolivar. See Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for
discussion on how the currency restrictions in Venezuela have impacted Herbalife Venezuela�s operations.

We plan to utilize the official rates to the extent allowable under Venezuelan government restrictions in order to
exchange Bolivars for U.S. dollars. We also plan to access government, PDVSA bond offerings, and alternative legal
exchange mechanisms when they are made available. As described in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, these alternative legal exchange mechanisms or less favorable official
exchange mechanisms could cause us to recognize
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additional foreign exchange losses if they are less favorable than the SIMADI rate. If unfavorable rates are used to
remeasure Herbalife Venezuela�s financial statements in future periods and the extent to which we can increase local
prices is restricted, this could negatively impact our future operating income and have an adverse impact on our
Venezuelan business. Our ability to access the CENCOEX rate, SICAD rate, SIMADI rate, or any other future official
exchange rate could impact what exchange rates will be used for remeasurement purposes in future periods. We
continue to assess and monitor the current economic and political environment in Venezuela. At March 31, 2015, the
SIMADI rate was 192 Bolivars per U.S. dollar.

As described in Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, we
adopted the SIMADI exchange rate during the first quarter of 2015 which was used to remeasure our Venezuelan
subsidiary�s financial statements at March 31, 2015. We recognized $32.6 million in foreign exchange losses in selling,
general & administrative expenses and $1.4 million of inventory write downs in cost of sales within our condensed
consolidated statement of income for the three months ended March 31, 2015 related to the remeasurement of our
Venezuelan subsidiary�s financial statements.

Consolidation of Herbalife Venezuela

We continue to operate in Venezuela and the increasing foreign currency constraints continue to create significant
challenges for Herbalife Venezuela. In October 2014, Herbalife Venezuela executed a contract with a Venezuelan
contract manufacturer to locally manufacture products to be sold to Herbalife Venezuela in Bolivars. We expect the
local contract manufacturing to begin sometime in 2015. While the initial volume of local contract manufacturing is
not expected to be significant, Herbalife Venezuela plans to expand its contract volume with the local manufacturer to
include additional products in future periods. Other strategies we have implemented to limit our financial exposure
from currency restrictions and devaluations in our Venezuela operation while we continue to support our Members
and their consumers include operating hour limitations, order size limitations, limiting Member promotions and events
to local Bolivar-denominated expenses, and limiting the importation of products into Venezuela. Herbalife Venezuela
will continue to apply for legal exchange mechanisms to convert its Bolivars to U.S. dollars. Despite the currency
exchange restrictions in Venezuela, we continue to control Herbalife Venezuela and its operations. Therefore, we
continue to consolidate Herbalife Venezuela in our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Herbalife Venezuela�s net sales represented approximately 1% and 4% of our consolidated net sales for the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and its total assets represented approximately 1% and 2% of
our consolidated total assets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. As of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, the majority of Herbalife Venezuela�s total assets consisted of Bolivar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

See the 2014 10-K for further information on Herbalife Venezuela and Venezuela�s highly inflationary economy.

Contingencies

See Note 5, Contingencies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 of Part I of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for information on our contingencies as of March 31, 2015.

Critical Accounting Policies

U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the year. We regularly evaluate our estimates and assumptions related to revenue
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recognition, allowance for product returns, inventory, goodwill and purchased intangible asset valuations, deferred
income tax asset valuation allowances, uncertain tax positions, tax contingencies, and other loss contingencies. We
base our estimates and assumptions on current facts, historical experience and various other factors that we believe to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities and the recording of revenue, costs and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. We consider the following policies to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in
preparing the financial statements and the uncertainties that could impact our operating results, financial condition and
cash flows.

We are a nutrition company that sells a wide range of weight management, targeted nutrition, energy, sports & fitness,
and outer nutrition products. Our products are manufactured by third party providers and by us in our Changsha,
Hunan, China extraction facility, Suzhou, China facility, Lake Forest, California facility, and in our Winston-Salem,
North Carolina facility, and then are sold to Members who consume and sell Herbalife products to retail consumers or
other Members. As of March 31, 2015, we sold products in 91 countries throughout the world and we are organized
and managed by geographic region. We aggregate our operating segments into one reporting segment, except China,
as management believes that our operating segments have similar operating characteristics and similar long term
operating performance. In making this determination, management believes that the operating segments are similar in
the nature of the products sold, the product acquisition process, the types of customers to whom products are sold, the
methods used to distribute the products, the nature of the regulatory environment, and their economic characteristics.
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We generally recognize revenue upon delivery and when both the title and risk and rewards pass to the Member or
importer, or as products are sold in our retail stores in China or through our independent service providers in China.
Net sales include product sales and shipping and handling revenues. Product sales are recognized net of product
returns, and discounts referred to as �distributor allowances.� We generally receive the net sales price in cash or through
credit card payments at the point of sale. Related royalty overrides are recorded when revenue is recognized.

Allowances for product returns, primarily in connection with our buyback program, are provided at the time the sale is
recorded. This accrual is based upon historical return rates for each country and the relevant return pattern, which
reflects anticipated returns to be received over a period of up to 12 months following the original sale. Historically,
product returns and buybacks have not been significant. Product returns and buybacks were approximately 0.1% of
product sales for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

We adjust our inventories to lower of cost or market. Additionally we adjust the carrying value of our inventory based
on assumptions regarding future demand for our products and market conditions. If future demand and market
conditions are less favorable than management�s assumptions, additional inventory write-downs could be required.
Likewise, favorable future demand and market conditions could positively impact future operating results if
previously written down inventories are sold. We have obsolete and slow moving inventories which have been
adjusted downward $40.9 million and $41.6 million to present them at their lower of cost or market in our condensed
consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

Goodwill and marketing related intangible assets not subject to amortization are tested annually for impairment, and
are tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. An
impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset�s fair value. As discussed below,
for goodwill impairment testing, we have the option to perform a qualitative assessment of whether it is more likely
than not that a reporting unit�s fair value is less than its carrying amount before applying the two-step goodwill
impairment test. If we conclude it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, then there is no need to perform the two-step impairment test. Currently, we do not use this
qualitative assessment option but we could in the future elect to use this option. For our marketing related intangible
assets a similar qualitative option is also currently available. However, we currently use a discounted cash flow model,
or the income approach, under the relief-from-royalty method to determine the fair value of our marketing related
intangible assets in order to confirm there is no impairment required. For our marketing related intangible assets, if we
do not use this qualitative assessment option, we could still in the future elect to use this option.

In order to estimate the fair value of goodwill, we also primarily use an income approach. The determination of
impairment is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps. First, we determine the fair value of a
reporting unit and compare it to its carrying amount. The determination of the fair value of the reporting units requires
us to make significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include estimates of future
revenues and expense growth rates, capital expenditures and the depreciation and amortization related to these capital
expenditures, discount rates, and other inputs. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates,
actual future results could differ. Changes in assumptions regarding future results or other underlying assumptions
could have a significant impact on the fair value of the reporting unit. Second, if the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting
unit�s goodwill and other intangibles over the implied fair value as determined in Step 2 of the goodwill impairment
test. Also, if during Step 1 of a goodwill impairment test we determine we have reporting units with zero or negative
carrying amounts, then we perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not that a goodwill
impairment exists. During Step 2 of a goodwill impairment test, the implied fair value of goodwill is determined in a
similar manner as how the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination is determined, in accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 805,
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Business Combinations. We would assign the fair value of a reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that
reporting unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting
unit was the price paid to acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amounts
assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, we had goodwill of approximately $96.5 million and $102.2 million, respectively. As of both March 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014, we had marketing related intangible assets of approximately $310.0 million. The decrease in
goodwill during the three months ended March 31, 2015 was due to cumulative translation adjustments. No marketing
related intangibles or goodwill impairment was recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

Contingencies are accounted for in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 450, Contingencies, or ASC 450. ASC 450
requires that we record an estimated loss from a loss contingency when information available prior to issuance of our
financial statements indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the
date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We also disclose material
contingencies when we believe a loss is not probable but reasonably possible as required by ASC 450. Accounting for
contingencies such as legal and non-income tax matters requires us to use judgment related to both the likelihood of a
loss and the estimate of the amount or range of loss. Many of these legal and tax contingencies can take years to be
resolved. Generally, as the time period increases over which the uncertainties are resolved, the likelihood of changes
to the estimate of the ultimate outcome increases.
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Deferred income tax assets have been established for net operating loss and interest carryforwards of certain foreign
subsidiaries and have been reduced by a valuation allowance to reflect them at amounts estimated to be ultimately
realized. Although realization is not assured, we believe it is more likely than not that the net carrying value will be
realized. The amount of the carryforwards that is considered realizable, however, could change if estimates of future
taxable income are adjusted. In the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations
where the tax law and ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As part of the process of preparing our consolidated
financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate
prior to the completion and filing of tax returns for such periods. These estimates involve complex issues and require
us to make judgments about the likely application of the tax law to our situation, as well as with respect to other
matters, such as anticipating the positions that we will take on tax returns prior to us actually preparing the returns and
the outcomes of disputes with tax authorities. The ultimate resolution of these issues may take extended periods of
time due to examinations by tax authorities and statutes of limitations. In addition, changes in our business, including
acquisitions, changes in our international corporate structure, changes in the geographic location of business functions
or assets, changes in the geographic mix and amount of income, as well as changes in our agreements with tax
authorities, valuation allowances, applicable accounting rules, applicable tax laws and regulations, rulings and
interpretations thereof, developments in tax audit and other matters, and variations in the estimated and actual level of
annual pre-tax income can affect the overall effective income tax rate.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, or ASC 740,
which provides guidance on the determination of how tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return
should be recorded in the financial statements. Under ASC 740, we must recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain
tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from
such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being
realized upon ultimate resolution.

We account for foreign currency transactions in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 830, Foreign Currency
Matters. In a majority of the countries where we operate, the functional currency is the local currency. Our foreign
subsidiaries� asset and liability accounts are translated for consolidated financial reporting purposes into U.S. dollar
amounts at period-end exchange rates. Revenue and expense accounts are translated at the average rates during the
year. Our foreign exchange translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss on our
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses and foreign currency
remeasurements are generally included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See discussion under Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, for information on new accounting
pronouncements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks, which arise during the normal course of business from changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. On a selected basis, we use derivative financial instruments to manage or hedge these
risks. All hedging transactions are authorized and executed pursuant to written guidelines and procedures.
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We apply FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, or ASC 815, which established accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are required to be recorded on
the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a fair-value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the
derivative and the underlying hedged item are recognized concurrently in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a
cash-flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) and are
recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of income when the hedged item affects earnings. ASC 815
defines the requirements for designation and documentation of hedging relationships as well as ongoing effectiveness
assessments in order to use hedge accounting. For a derivative that does not qualify as a hedge, changes in fair value
are recognized concurrently in earnings.

A discussion of our primary market risk exposures and derivatives is presented below.

Foreign Exchange Risk

We transact business globally and are subject to risks associated with changes in foreign exchange rates. Our objective
is to minimize the impact to earnings and cash flow associated with foreign exchange rate fluctuations. We enter into
foreign exchange derivatives in the ordinary course of business primarily to reduce exposure to currency fluctuations
attributable to intercompany transactions, translation of local currency revenue, inventory purchases subject to foreign
currency exposure, and to partially mitigate the impact of foreign currency rate fluctuations. Due to volatility in
foreign exchange markets, our current strategy, in general, is to
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hedge some of the significant exposures on a short-term basis. We will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
markets and evaluate our hedging strategy accordingly. With the exception of our foreign exchange forward contracts
relating to forecasted inventory purchases and intercompany management fees discussed below, all of our foreign
exchange contracts are designated as free standing derivatives for which hedge accounting does not apply. The
changes in the fair value of the derivatives not qualifying as cash flow hedges are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses in our condensed consolidated statements of income.

The foreign exchange forward contracts designated as free standing derivatives are used to hedge advances between
subsidiaries and to partially mitigate the impact of foreign currency fluctuations. The fair value of foreign exchange
derivative contracts is based on third-party quotes. Our foreign currency derivative contracts are generally executed on
a monthly basis.

We also purchase foreign currency forward contracts in order to hedge forecasted inventory transactions and
intercompany management fees that are designated as cash-flow hedges and are subject to foreign currency exposures.
We applied the hedge accounting rules as required by ASC 815 for these hedges. These contracts allow us to buy and
sell certain currencies at specified contract rates. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the aggregate
notional amounts of these contracts outstanding were approximately $201.6 million and $225.3 million, respectively.
At March 31, 2015, the outstanding contracts were expected to mature over the next twelve months. Our derivative
financial instruments are recorded on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at fair value based on quoted market
rates. For the forecasted inventory transactions, the forward contracts are used to hedge forecasted inventory
transactions over specific months. Changes in the fair value of these forward contracts, excluding forward points,
designated as cash-flow hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
within shareholders� deficit, and are recognized in cost of sales in the condensed consolidated statement of income
during the period which approximates the time the hedged inventory is sold. We also hedge forecasted intercompany
management fees over specific months. Changes in the fair value of these forward contracts designated as cash flow
hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss within shareholders� deficit, and are
recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses in the condensed consolidated statement of income in the
period when the hedged item and underlying transaction affects earnings. As of March 31, 2015, we recorded assets at
fair value of $18.2 million and liabilities at fair value of $6.1 million relating to all outstanding foreign currency
contracts designated as cash-flow hedges. As of December 31, 2014, we recorded assets at fair value of $12.3 million
and liabilities at fair value of $1.6 million relating to all outstanding foreign currency contracts designated as
cash-flow hedges. During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the ineffective portion relating to these
hedges was immaterial and the hedges remained effective as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the majority of our outstanding foreign currency forward contracts had
maturity dates of less than twelve months with the majority of freestanding derivatives expiring within three and two
months as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

The following table provides information about the details of our foreign exchange forward contracts:

Foreign Currency

Average
Contract

Rate
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Gain (Loss)
(In millions) (In millions)

At March 31, 2015
Buy Brazilian real sell U.S. dollar 2.67 $ 0.3 $ (0.1) 
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Buy Chinese yuan sell Euro 7.72 7.0 1.1
Buy Chinese yuan sell U.S. dollar 6.38 82.3 0.6
Buy Euro sell Australian dollar 1.42 4.7 �  
Buy Euro sell Chilean peso 681.04 0.5 �  
Buy Euro sell Indonesian rupiah 14,255.00 1.5 �  
Buy Euro sell Mexican peso 17.37 123.5 (6.6) 
Buy Euro sell Philippine peso 49.05 0.8 �  
Buy Euro sell Russian ruble 77.51 3.6 (0.8) 
Buy Euro sell U.S. dollar 1.27 1.3 (0.2) 
Buy British pound sell Euro 0.76 3.6 0.2
Buy Indonesian rupiah sell U.S. dollar 13,816.00 4.0 �  
Buy Kazakhstani tenge sell U.S. dollar 221.50 1.1 �  
Buy Malaysian ringgit sell U.S. dollar 3.74 2.4 �  
Buy Norwegian krone sell U.S. dollar 7.92 1.3 �  
Buy Russian ruble sell Euro 65.12 3.0 0.1
Buy Russian ruble sell U.S. dollar 59.57 1.1 �  
Buy Swedish krona sell U.S. dollar 8.46 1.9 �  
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Foreign Currency

Average
Contract

Rate
Notional
Amount

Fair
Value

Gain (Loss)
(In millions) (In millions)

Buy U.S. dollar sell Brazilian real 3.11 22.0 1.8
Buy U.S. dollar sell Colombian peso 2,565.20 5.2 0.1
Buy U.S. dollar sell Euro 1.23 132.9 15.9
Buy U.S. dollar sell South Korean won 1,118.36 15.1 (0.1) 

Total forward contracts $ 419.1 $ 12.0

The majority of our foreign subsidiaries designate their local currencies as their functional currencies. At March 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014, the total amount of our foreign subsidiary cash was $287.2 million and $440.8 million,
respectively, of which $8.2 million and $8.3 million, respectively, was invested in U.S. dollars. At March 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014, the total amount of cash and cash equivalents held by our parent and its U.S. entities was
$428.3 million and $204.6 million, respectively.

Currency restrictions enacted by the Venezuelan government have become more restrictive and have impacted the
ability of our subsidiary in Venezuela, or Herbalife Venezuela, to obtain U.S. dollars in exchange for Venezuelan
Bolivars, or Bolivars, at the official foreign exchange rates from the Venezuelan government. See Note 2, Significant
Accounting Policies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion on how the currency
restrictions in Venezuela have impacted Herbalife Venezuela�s operations.

Interest Rate Risk

As of March 31, 2015, the aggregate annual maturities of the Credit Facility were expected to be $75.0 million for the
remainder of 2015 and $750.0 million for 2016. On May 4, 2015, the Credit Facility was amended, as described in
Note 14, Subsequent Events. Pursuant to the amended Credit Facility, the aggregate annual maturities are now
expected to be $174.6 million for the remainder of 2015, $229.7 million for 2016, and $420.7 million for 2017. The
fair value of the Credit Facility approximated its carrying value of $825.0 million as of March 31, 2015.The fair value
of the Credit Facility approximated its carrying value of $850.0 million as of December 31, 2014. The Credit Facility
bears a variable interest rate, and on March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the weighted average interest rate of the
Credit Facility, including borrowings under the Term Loan, was 2.69% and 3.04%, respectively. As of March 31,
2015, the fair value of the liability component of our $1.15 billion Convertible Notes was approximately $866.2
million and the carrying value was $970.5 million. The Convertible Notes pay interest at a fixed rate of 2.00% per
annum payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning on August 15, 2014.
The Convertible Notes mature on August 15, 2019, unless earlier repurchased or converted. We may not redeem the
Convertible Notes prior to their stated maturity date. Since our Credit Facility is based on variable interest rates, and
as we have not entered into any new interest swap arrangements since the expiration of our previous interest rate
swaps in July 2013, if interest rates were to increase or decrease by 1% for the year, and our borrowing amounts
stayed constant on our Credit Facility, our annual interest expense would increase or decrease by approximately
$8.3 million.

Item 4. Controls And Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange
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Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on such evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of March 31, 2015.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarter ended
March 31, 2015 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements other than
statements of historical fact are �forward-looking statements� for purposes of federal and state securities laws,
including any projections of earnings, revenue or other financial items; any statements of the plans, strategies and
objectives of management for future operations; any statements concerning proposed new services or developments;
any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements of belief; and any statements of
assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements may include the words �may,� �will,�
�estimate,� �intend,� �continue,� �believe,� �expect� or �anticipate� and any other similar words.

41

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 82



Table of Contents

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual
results could differ materially from those projected or assumed in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future
financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change and to
inherent risks and uncertainties, such as those disclosed or incorporated by reference in our filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Important factors that could cause our actual results, performance and achievements, or
industry results to differ materially from estimates or projections contained in our forward-looking statements
include, among others, the following:

� our relationship with, and our ability to influence the actions of, our Members;

� improper action by our employees or Members in violation of applicable law;

� adverse publicity associated with our products or network marketing organization, including our ability to
comfort the marketplace and regulators regarding our compliance with applicable laws;

� changing consumer preferences and demands;

� our reliance upon, or the loss or departure of any member of, our senior management team which could
negatively impact our Member relations and operating results;

� the competitive nature of our business;

� regulatory matters governing our products, including potential governmental or regulatory actions
concerning the safety or efficacy of our products and network marketing program, including the direct
selling market in which we operate;

� legal challenges to our network marketing program;

� risks associated with operating internationally and the effect of economic factors, including foreign
exchange, inflation, disruptions or conflicts with our third party importers, pricing and currency devaluation
risks, especially in countries such as Venezuela;

� uncertainties relating to the application of transfer pricing, duties, value added taxes, and other tax
regulations, and changes thereto;

� uncertainties relating to interpretation and enforcement of legislation in China governing direct selling;
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� our inability to obtain the necessary licenses to expand our direct selling business in China;

� adverse changes in the Chinese economy;

� our dependence on increased penetration of existing markets;

� contractual limitations on our ability to expand our business;

� our reliance on our information technology infrastructure and outside manufacturers;

� the sufficiency of trademarks and other intellectual property rights;

� product concentration;

� changes in tax laws, treaties or regulations, or their interpretation;

� taxation relating to our Members;

� product liability claims;

� whether we will purchase any of our shares in the open markets or otherwise; and

� share price volatility related to, among other things, speculative trading and certain traders shorting our
common shares.

Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements are set
forth in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including under the heading �Risk Factors,� �Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� and in our Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements and the related Notes.

Forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q speak only as of the date hereof, and
forward-looking statements in documents attached that are incorporated by reference speak only as of the date of
those documents. We do not undertake any obligation to update or release any revisions to any forward-looking
statement or to report any events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated
events, except as required by law.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See discussion under Note 5, Contingencies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1
of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to Us and Our Business

Our failure to establish and maintain Member and sales leader relationships for any reason could negatively
impact sales of our products and harm our financial condition and operating results.

We distribute our products exclusively to and through approximately 4.1 million independent Members, and we
depend upon them directly for substantially all of our sales. Our Members, including our sales leaders, may
voluntarily terminate their Member agreements with us at any time. To increase our revenue, we must increase the
number of, or the productivity of, our Members. Accordingly, our success depends in significant part upon our ability
to recruit, retain and motivate a large base of Members. The loss of a significant number of Members for any reason
could negatively impact sales of our products and could impair our ability to attract new Members. In our efforts to
attract and retain Members, we compete with other network marketing organizations, including those in the weight
management, dietary and nutritional supplement and personal care and cosmetic product industries. Our operating
results could be harmed if our existing and new business opportunities and products do not generate sufficient interest
to retain existing Members and attract new Members.

Our Member organization has a high turnover rate, which is a common characteristic found in the direct selling
industry. For the latest twelve month re-qualification period ending January 2015, approximately 54.2% of our sales
leaders, excluding China, Venezuela and Argentina, re-qualified. We did not require our Venezuelan sales leaders to
re-qualify temporarily for the period ended January 2014 due to product supply limitation resulting from currency
restrictions; the Venezuela re-qualification requirement resumed for the period ended January 2015 after providing the
market time to adjust to supply levels. We did not require our Argentinean sales leaders to re-qualify temporarily for
the period ended January 2015 due to product supply challenges resulting from importation restrictions. If Venezuela
and Argentina were included on a normalized basis, the percentage would have been 53.4%.

Because we cannot exert the same level of influence or control over our independent Members as we could were
they our own employees, our Members could fail to comply with applicable law or our Member policies and
procedures, which could result in claims against us that could harm our financial condition and operating results.

Our Members are independent contractors and, accordingly, we are not in a position to directly provide the same
direction, motivation and oversight as we would if Members were our own employees. As a result, there can be no
assurance that our Members will participate in our marketing strategies or plans, accept our introduction of new
products, or comply with our Members policies and procedures.

Extensive federal, state and local laws regulate our business, products and network marketing program. Because we
have expanded into foreign countries, our policies and procedures for our independent Members differ due to the
different legal requirements of each country in which we do business. While we have implemented Member policies
and procedures designed to govern Member conduct and to protect the goodwill associated with Herbalife trademarks
and tradenames, it can be difficult to enforce these policies and procedures because of the large number of Members
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and their independent status. Violations by our independent Members of applicable law or of our policies and
procedures in dealing with customers could reflect negatively on our products and operations and harm our business
reputation. In addition, it is possible that a court could hold us civilly or criminally accountable based on vicarious
liability because of the actions of our independent Members.

Adverse publicity associated with our products, ingredients or network marketing program, or those of similar
companies, could harm our financial condition and operating results.

The size of our distribution force and the results of our operations may be significantly affected by the public�s
perception of the Company and similar companies. This perception is dependent upon opinions concerning:

� the safety and quality of our products and ingredients;

� the safety and quality of similar products and ingredients distributed by other companies;

� our Members;

� our network marketing program; and

� the direct selling business generally.
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Adverse publicity concerning any actual or purported failure of our Company or our Members to comply with
applicable laws and regulations regarding product claims and advertising, good manufacturing practices, the
regulation of our network marketing program, the registration of our products for sale in our target markets or other
aspects of our business, whether or not resulting in enforcement actions or the imposition of penalties, could have an
adverse effect on the goodwill of our Company and could negatively affect our ability to attract, motivate and retain
Members, which would negatively impact our ability to generate revenue. We cannot ensure that all of our Members
will comply with applicable legal requirements relating to the advertising, labeling, licensing or distribution of our
products.

In addition, our Members� and consumers� perception of the safety and quality of our products and ingredients as well
as similar products and ingredients distributed by other companies can be significantly influenced by media attention,
publicized scientific research or findings, widespread product liability claims and other publicity concerning our
products or ingredients or similar products and ingredients distributed by other companies. Adverse publicity, whether
or not accurate or resulting from consumers� use or misuse of our products, that associates consumption of our
products or ingredients or any similar products or ingredients with illness or other adverse effects, questions the
benefits of our or similar products or claims that any such products are ineffective, inappropriately labeled or have
inaccurate instructions as to their use, could lead to lawsuits or other legal challenges and could negatively impact our
reputation, the market demand for our products, or our general business.

From time to time we receive inquiries from government agencies and third parties requesting information concerning
our products. We fully cooperate with these inquiries including, when requested, by the submission of detailed
technical dossiers addressing product composition, manufacturing, process control, quality assurance, and
contaminant testing. Further, we periodically respond to requests from regulators for additional information regarding
product-specific adverse events. We are confident in the safety of our products when used as directed. However, there
can be no assurance that regulators in these or other markets will not take actions that might delay or prevent the
introduction of new products, or require the reformulation or the temporary or permanent withdrawal of certain of our
existing products from their markets.

Adverse publicity relating to us, our products or our operations, including our network marketing program or the
attractiveness or viability of the financial opportunities provided thereby, has had, and could again have, a negative
effect on our ability to attract, motivate and retain Members, and it could also affect our share price. In the mid-1980�s,
our products and marketing program became the subject of regulatory scrutiny in the United States, resulting in large
part from claims and representations made about our products by our Members, including impermissible therapeutic
claims. The resulting adverse publicity caused a rapid, substantial loss of Members in the United States and a
corresponding reduction in sales beginning in 1985. In addition, in late 2012, a hedge fund manager publicly raised
allegations regarding the legality of our network marketing program and announced that his fund had taken a
significant short position regarding our common shares, leading to intense public scrutiny and governmental inquiries,
and significant stock price volatility. We expect that negative publicity will, from time to time, continue to negatively
impact our business in particular markets and may adversely affect our share price.

Our failure to appropriately respond to changing consumer preferences and demand for new products or product
enhancements could significantly harm our Member and customer relationships and product sales and harm our
financial condition and operating results.

Our business is subject to changing consumer trends and preferences, especially with respect to weight management
products. Our continued success depends in part on our ability to anticipate and respond to these changes, and we may
not respond in a timely or commercially appropriate manner to such changes. Furthermore, the nutritional supplement
industry is characterized by rapid and frequent changes in demand for products and new product introductions and
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enhancements. Our failure to accurately predict these trends could negatively impact consumer opinion of our
products, which in turn could harm our customer and Member relationships and cause the loss of sales. The success of
our new product offerings and enhancements depends upon a number of factors, including our ability to:

� accurately anticipate customer needs;

� innovate and develop new products or product enhancements that meet these needs;

� successfully commercialize new products or product enhancements in a timely manner;

� price our products competitively;

� manufacture and deliver our products in sufficient volumes and in a timely manner; and

� differentiate our product offerings from those of our competitors.
If we do not introduce new products or make enhancements to meet the changing needs of our customers in a timely
manner, some of our products could be rendered obsolete, which could negatively impact our revenues, financial
condition and operating results.
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Due to the high level of competition in our industry, we might fail to retain our customers and Members, which
would harm our financial condition and operating results.

The business of marketing weight management and nutrition products is highly competitive and sensitive to the
introduction of new products or weight management plans, including various prescription drugs, which may rapidly
capture a significant share of the market. These market segments include numerous manufacturers, distributors,
marketers, retailers and physicians that actively compete for the business of consumers both in the United States and
abroad. In addition, we anticipate that we will be subject to increasing competition in the future from sellers that
utilize electronic commerce. Some of these competitors have longer operating histories, significantly greater financial,
technical, product development, marketing and sales resources, greater name recognition, larger established customer
bases and better-developed distribution channels than we do. Our present or future competitors may be able to develop
products that are comparable or superior to those we offer, adapt more quickly than we do to new technologies,
evolving industry trends and standards or customer requirements, or devote greater resources to the development,
promotion and sale of their products than we do. For example, if our competitors develop other diet or weight
management products that prove to be more effective than our products, demand for our products could be reduced.
Accordingly, we may not be able to compete effectively in our markets and competition may intensify.

We are also subject to significant competition for the recruitment of Members from other network marketing
organizations, including those that market weight management products, dietary and nutritional supplements and
personal care products as well as other types of products. We compete for global customers and Members with regard
to weight management, nutritional supplement and personal care products. Our competitors include both direct selling
companies such as NuSkin Enterprises, Nature�s Sunshine, Alticor/Amway, Melaleuca, Avon Products, Oriflame,
Omnilife, Tupperware and Mary Kay, as well as retail establishments such as Weight Watchers, Jenny Craig, General
Nutrition Centers, Wal-Mart and retail pharmacies.

In addition, because the industry in which we operate is not particularly capital intensive or otherwise subject to high
barriers to entry, it is relatively easy for new competitors to emerge who will compete with us for our Members and
customers. In addition, the fact that our Members may easily enter and exit our network marketing program
contributes to the level of competition that we face. For example, a Member can enter or exit our network marketing
system with relative ease at any time without facing a significant investment or loss of capital because (1) we have a
low upfront financial cost to become a Herbalife Member, (2) we do not require any specific amount of time to work
as a Member, (3) we do not charge Members for any training that we might require and (4) we do not prohibit a new
Member from working with another company. Our ability to remain competitive therefore depends, in significant part,
on our success in recruiting and retaining Members through an attractive compensation plan, the maintenance of an
attractive product portfolio and other incentives. We cannot ensure that our programs for recruitment and retention of
Members will be successful and if they are not, our financial condition and operating results would be harmed.

We are affected by extensive laws, governmental regulations, administrative determinations, court decisions and
similar constraints both domestically and abroad, and our failure or our Members� failure to comply with these
constraints could lead to the imposition of significant penalties or claims, which could harm our financial
condition and operating results.

In both domestic and foreign markets, the formulation, manufacturing, packaging, labeling, distribution, advertising,
importation, exportation, licensing, sale and storage of our products are affected by extensive laws, governmental
regulations, administrative determinations, court decisions and similar constraints. Such laws, regulations and other
constraints may exist at the federal, state or local levels in the United States and at all levels of government in foreign
jurisdictions. There can be no assurance that we or our Members are in compliance with all of these regulations. Our
failure or our Members� failure to comply with these regulations or new regulations could disrupt our Members� sale of
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our products, or lead to the imposition of significant penalties or claims and could negatively impact our business. In
addition, the adoption of new regulations or changes in the interpretations of existing regulations may result in
significant compliance costs or discontinuation of product sales and may negatively impact the marketing of our
products, resulting in significant loss of sales revenues.

The FTC revised its Guides Concerning the Use of Endorsements and Testimonials in Advertising, or Guides, which
became effective on December 1, 2009. Although the Guides are not binding, they explain how the FTC interprets
Section 5 of the FTC Act�s prohibition on unfair or deceptive acts or practices. Consequently, the FTC could bring a
Section 5 enforcement action based on practices that are inconsistent with the Guides. Under the revised Guides,
advertisements that feature a consumer and convey his or her atypical experience with a product or service are
required to clearly disclose the results that consumers can generally expect. In contrast to the 1980 version of the
Guides, which allowed advertisers to describe atypical results in a testimonial as long as they included a disclaimer
such as �results not typical�, the revised Guides no longer contain such a safe harbor. The revised Guides also add new
examples to illustrate the long-standing principle that �material connections� between advertisers and endorsers (such as
payments or free products), connections that consumers might not expect, must be disclosed. Herbalife has revised its
marketing materials to be compliant with the revised Guides. However, it is possible that our use, and that of our
Members, of testimonials in the advertising and promotion of our products, including but not limited to our weight
management products and our income opportunity, will be significantly impacted and therefore might negatively
impact our sales.
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Governmental regulations in countries where we plan to commence or expand operations may prevent or delay entry
into those markets. In addition, our ability to sustain satisfactory levels of sales in our markets is dependent in
significant part on our ability to introduce additional products into such markets. However, governmental regulations
in our markets, both domestic and international, can delay or prevent the introduction, or require the reformulation or
withdrawal, of certain of our products. Any such regulatory action, whether or not it results in a final determination
adverse to us, could create negative publicity, with detrimental effects on the motivation and recruitment of Members
and, consequently, on sales.

We are subject to FDA rules for current good manufacturing practices, or cGMPs, for the manufacture, packing,
labeling and holding of dietary supplements and over-the-counter drugs distributed in the United States. Herbalife has
implemented a comprehensive quality assurance program that is designed to maintain compliance with the cGMPs
products manufactured by or on behalf of Herbalife for distribution in the United States. However, if Herbalife should
be found not to be in compliance with cGMPs for the products it self-manufactures it could negatively impact our
reputation and ability to sell our products even after any such situation had been rectified. Further, if contract
manufacturers whose products bear Herbalife labels fail to comply with the cGMPs, this could negatively impact
Herbalife�s reputation and ability to sell its products even though Herbalife is not directly liable under the cGMPs for
such compliance. In complying with the dietary supplement cGMPs, we have experienced increases in production
costs as a result of the necessary increase in testing of raw ingredients, work in process and finished products.

Since late 2012, a short seller has made and continues to make allegations regarding the Company and its network
marketing program. The Company believes these allegations are without merit and is vigorously defending itself
against such claims, including proactively reaching out to governmental authorities about what the Company believes
is manipulative activity with respect to its securities. Because of these allegations, the Company and others have
received and may receive additional regulatory and governmental inquiries. For example, the Company has previously
disclosed inquiries from the Federal Trade Commission, Securities and Exchange Commission and other
governmental authorities. The Department of Justice recently sought information from the Company, certain of its
Members and others regarding allegations being made about the business practices of the Company and its
Members. In the future, these and other governmental authorities may determine to seek information from the
Company and other persons relating to these same or other allegations. If the Company believes any governmental or
regulatory inquiry or investigation is or becomes material it will be disclosed individually. Consistent with its policies,
the Company has cooperated and will continue to fully cooperate with any governmental or regulatory inquiries or
investigations.

Our network marketing program could be found to be not in compliance with current or newly adopted laws or
regulations in one or more markets, which could prevent us from conducting our business in these markets and
harm our financial condition and operating results.

Our network marketing program is subject to a number of federal and state regulations administered by the FTC and
various federal and state agencies in the United States as well as regulations on direct selling in foreign markets
administered by foreign agencies. We are subject to the risk that, in one or more markets, our network marketing
program could be found not to be in compliance with applicable law or regulations, including the 1986 permanent
injunction entered in California in proceedings initiated by the California Attorney General. Regulations applicable to
network marketing organizations generally are directed at preventing fraudulent or deceptive schemes, often referred
to as �pyramid� or �chain sales� schemes, by ensuring that product sales ultimately are made to consumers and that
advancement within an organization is based on sales of the organization�s products rather than investments in the
organization or other non-retail sales-related criteria. The regulatory requirements concerning network marketing
programs do not include �bright line� rules and are inherently fact-based and, thus, we are subject to the risk that these
laws or regulations or the enforcement or interpretation of these laws and regulations by governmental agencies or
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courts can change. For example, while we believe we are in compliance with the permanent injunction, there is no
assurance that a court or the Attorney General would agree.

The ambiguity surrounding these laws can also affect the public perception of our company. Specifically, in late 2012,
a hedge fund manager publicly raised allegations regarding the legality of our network marketing program and
announced that his fund had taken a significant short position regarding our common shares, leading to intense public
scrutiny and significant stock price volatility. The failure of our network marketing program to comply with current or
newly adopted regulations could negatively impact our business in a particular market or in general and may adversely
affect our share price.

We are also subject to the risk of private party challenges to the legality of our network marketing program. Some
network marketing programs of other companies have been successfully challenged in the past, while other challenges
to network marketing programs of other companies have been defeated. Adverse judicial determinations with respect
to our network marketing program, or in proceedings not involving us directly but which challenge the legality of
network marketing systems, in any other market in which we operate, could negatively impact our business.
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A substantial portion of our business is conducted in foreign markets, exposing us to the risks of trade or foreign
exchange restrictions, increased tariffs, foreign currency fluctuations, disruptions or conflicts with our third party
importers and similar risks associated with foreign operations.

Approximately 82% of our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2014, were generated outside the United States,
exposing our business to risks associated with foreign operations. For example, a foreign government may impose
trade or foreign exchange restrictions or increased tariffs, or otherwise limit or restrict our ability to import products
into a country, any of which could negatively impact our operations. We are also exposed to risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations. For instance, purchases from suppliers are generally made in U.S. dollars while sales to
Members are generally made in local currencies. Accordingly, strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus a foreign
currency could have a negative impact on us. Although we engage in transactions to protect against risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations, we cannot be certain any hedging activity will effectively reduce our exchange rate
exposure. Additionally we may be negatively impacted by conflicts with or disruptions caused or faced by our third
party importers, as well as conflicts between such importers and local governments or regulating agencies. Our
operations in some markets also may be adversely affected by political, economic and social instability in foreign
countries. As we continue to focus on expanding our existing international operations, these and other risks associated
with international operations may increase, which could harm our financial condition and operating results.

Currency restrictions enacted by the Venezuelan government have become more restrictive and have impacted the
ability of our subsidiary in Venezuela, or Herbalife Venezuela, to obtain U.S. dollars in exchange for Venezuelan
Bolivars, or Bolivars, at the official foreign exchange rate. If the foreign currency restrictions in Venezuela intensify
or do not improve, we may be required to deconsolidate Herbalife Venezuela for U.S. GAAP purposes and would be
subject to the risk of impairment. In addition, if foreign currency restrictions do not improve, we may have to use
alternative legal exchange mechanisms or less favorable official exchange mechanisms which are significantly less
favorable than the SIMADI rate which could cause the Company to incur significant foreign exchange losses. Due to
the current political and economic environment in Venezuela, there is also a risk that there could be additional foreign
currency devaluations. If we are unsuccessful in implementing any financially and economically viable strategies
including local manufacturing, we may be required to fundamentally change our business model, or suspend or cease
operations in Venezuela. If any of these events were to occur, it could result in a significant negative impact on our
consolidated earnings, cash and cash equivalents and present and future cash flows. See Item 2, Management�s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, within this quarterly report on Form 10Q,
and Note 2, Significant Accounting Policies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1
of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information on foreign currency restrictions and significant
foreign exchange losses recognized in our consolidated financial statements relating to Venezuela.

Our expansion in China is subject to general, as well as industry-specific, economic, political and legal
developments and risks in China and requires that we utilize a different business model from that which we use
elsewhere in the world.

Our expansion of operations into China is subject to risks and uncertainties related to general economic, political and
legal developments in China, among other things. The Chinese government exercises significant control over the
Chinese economy, including but not limited to controlling capital investments, allocating resources, setting monetary
policy, controlling foreign exchange and monitoring foreign exchange rates, implementing and overseeing tax
regulations, providing preferential treatment to certain industry segments or companies and issuing necessary licenses
to conduct business. Accordingly, any adverse change in the Chinese economy, the Chinese legal system or Chinese
governmental, economic or other policies could have a material adverse effect on our business in China and our
prospects generally.
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China has published regulations governing direct selling and prohibiting pyramid promotional schemes, and a number
of administrative methods and proclamations have been issued. These regulations require us to use a business model
different from that which we offer in other markets. To allow us to operate under these regulations, we have created
and introduced a model specifically for China. In China, we have Company-operated retail stores that can directly
serve customers and preferred customers. We also have sales representatives who are permitted by the terms of our
direct selling licenses to sell away from fixed retail locations in the provinces of Jiangsu, Guangdong, Shandong,
Zhejiang, Guizhou, Beijing, Fujian, Sichuan, Hubei, Shanxi, Shanghai, Jiangxi, Liaoning, Jilin, Henan, Chongqing,
Hebi, Shaanxi, Tianjin, Heilongjiang, Hunan, Guangxi, Hainan, Anhui and Yunnan.

We have also engaged independent service providers that meet both the requirements to operate their own business
under Chinese law as well as the conditions set forth by Herbalife to sell products and provide marketing, sales and
support services to Herbalife customers. These features are not common to the business model we employ elsewhere
in the world, and based on the direct selling licenses we have received and the terms of those which we hope to
receive in the future to conduct a direct selling enterprise in China, our business model in China will continue to
incorporate some or all of these features. The direct selling regulations require us to apply for various approvals to
conduct a direct selling enterprise in China. The process for obtaining the necessary licenses to conduct a direct selling
business is protracted and cumbersome and involves multiple layers of Chinese governmental authorities and
numerous governmental employees at each layer. While direct selling licenses are centrally issued, such licenses are
generally valid only in the jurisdictions within which related approvals have been obtained. Such approvals are
generally awarded on local and provincial bases, and the approval process requires involvement with multiple
ministries at each level. Our participation and conduct during the approval process is guided not only by distinct
Chinese practices and customs, but is also subject to applicable laws of
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China and the other jurisdictions in which we operate our business, including the U.S., as well as our internal code of
ethics. There is always a risk that in attempting to comply with local customs and practices in China during the
application process or otherwise, we will fail to comply with requirements applicable to us in China itself or in other
jurisdictions, and any such failure to comply with applicable requirements could prevent us from obtaining the direct
selling licenses or related local or provincial approvals. Furthermore, we rely on certain key personnel in China to
assist us during the approval process, and the loss of any such key personnel could delay or hinder our ability to obtain
licenses or related approvals. For all of the above reasons, there can be no assurance that we will obtain additional
direct-selling licenses, or obtain related approvals to expand into any or all of the localities or provinces in China that
are important to our business. Our inability to obtain, retain, or renew any or all of the licenses or related approvals
that are required for us to operate in China could negatively impact our business.

Additionally, although certain regulations have been published with respect to obtaining and operating under such
approvals and otherwise conducting business in China, other regulations are pending and there continues to be
uncertainty regarding the interpretation and enforcement of Chinese regulations. The regulatory environment in China
is evolving, and officials in the Chinese government exercise broad discretion in deciding how to interpret and apply
regulations. We cannot be certain that our business model will continue to be deemed by national or local Chinese
regulatory authorities to be compliant with any such regulations. The Chinese government rigorously monitors the
direct selling market in China, and in the past has taken serious action against companies that the government believed
were engaging in activities they regarded to be in violation of applicable law, including shutting down their businesses
and imposing substantial fines. As a result, there can be no guarantee that the Chinese government�s current or future
interpretation and application of the existing and new regulations will not negatively impact our business in China,
result in regulatory investigations or lead to fines or penalties against us or our Chinese Members.

Chinese regulations prevent persons who are not Chinese nationals from engaging in direct selling in China. We
cannot guarantee that any of our Members living outside of China or any of our sales representatives or independent
service providers in China have not engaged or will not engage in activities that violate our policies in this market, or
that violate Chinese law or other applicable law, and therefore result in regulatory action and adverse publicity.

China has also enacted labor contract and social insurance legislation. We have reviewed our employment contracts
and contractual relations with employees in China, which include certain of our employed sales personnel, and have
transferred those employed sales personnel to independent service providers and have made such other changes as we
believe to be necessary or appropriate to bring these contracts and contractual relations into compliance with these
laws and their implementing regulations. In addition, we continue to monitor the situation to determine how these
laws and regulations will be implemented in practice. There is no guarantee that these laws will not adversely impact
us, cause us to change our operating plan for China or otherwise have an adverse impact on our business operations in
China.

We may experience rapid growth in China, and there can be no assurances that we will be able to successfully manage
rapid expansion of manufacturing operations and a rapidly growing and dynamic sales force. If we are unable to
effectively manage such growth and expansion of our retail stores and manufacturing operations, our government
relations may be compromised and our operations in China may be harmed.

If we fail to further penetrate existing markets, then the growth in sales of our products, along with our operating
results, could be negatively impacted.

The success of our business is to a large extent contingent on our ability to further penetrate existing markets which is
subject to numerous factors, many of which are out of our control. Government regulations in both our domestic and
international markets can delay or prevent the introduction, or require the reformulation or withdrawal, of some of our
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products, which could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. Also, our ability
to increase market penetration in certain countries may be limited by the finite number of persons in a given country
inclined to pursue a direct selling business opportunity or consumers willing to purchase Herbalife products.
Moreover, our growth will depend upon improved training and other activities that enhance Member retention in our
markets. While we have recently experienced significant growth in certain of our markets, we cannot assure you that
such growth levels will continue in the immediate or long term future. Furthermore, our efforts to support growth in
such international markets could be hampered to the extent that our infrastructure in such markets is deficient when
compared to our more developed markets, such as the U.S. Therefore, we cannot assure you that our general efforts to
increase our market penetration and Member retention in existing markets will be successful. If we are unable to
further penetrate existing markets, our operating results could suffer.

Our contractual obligation to sell our products only through our Herbalife Member network and to refrain from
changing certain aspects of our marketing plan may limit our growth.

We are a party to an agreement with our Members that provides assurances, to the extent legally permitted, we will
not sell Herbalife products worldwide through any distribution channel other than our network of independent
Herbalife Members. Thus, we are contractually prohibited from expanding our business by selling Herbalife products
through other distribution channels that may be available to our competitors, such as over the internet, through
wholesale sales, by establishing retail stores or through mail order systems. Since this is an open-ended commitment,
there can be no assurance that we will be able to take advantage of innovative new distribution channels that are
developed in the future.
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In addition, this agreement with our Members provides that we will not make any material changes adverse to our
Members to certain aspects of our marketing plan without the affirmative vote of a specified percentage of our
Members leadership. For example, our agreement with our Members provides that we may increase, but not decrease,
the discount percentages available to our Members for the purchase of products or the applicable royalty override
percentages, and production and other bonus percentages available to our Members at various qualification levels
within our Member hierarchy. We may not modify the eligibility or qualification criteria for these discounts, royalty
overrides and production and other bonuses unless we do so in a manner to make eligibility and/or qualification easier
than under the applicable criteria in effect as of the date of the agreement. Our agreement with our Members further
provides that we may not vary the criteria for qualification for each Member tier within our Member hierarchy, unless
we do so in such a way so as to make qualification easier.

Although we reserved the right to make these changes to our marketing plan without the consent of our Members in
the event that changes are required by applicable law or are necessary in our reasonable business judgment to account
for specific local market or currency conditions to achieve a reasonable profit on operations, there can be no assurance
that our agreement with our Members will not restrict our ability to adapt our marketing plan to the evolving
requirements of the markets in which we operate. As a result, our growth may be limited.

We depend on the integrity and reliability of our information technology infrastructure, and any related
inadequacies may result in substantial interruptions to our business.

Our ability to provide products and services to our Members depends on the performance and availability of our core
transactional systems. We upgraded our back office systems globally to the Oracle Enterprise Suite which is supported
by a robust hardware and network infrastructure. The Oracle Enterprise Suite is a scalable and stable solution that
provides a solid foundation upon which we are building our next generation Member facing Internet toolset. While we
continue to invest in our information technology infrastructure, there can be no assurance that there will not be any
significant interruptions to such systems or that the systems will be adequate to meet all of our future business needs.

The most important aspect of our information technology infrastructure is the system through which we record and
track Member sales, volume points, royalty overrides, bonuses and other incentives. We have encountered, and may
encounter in the future, errors in our software or our enterprise network, or inadequacies in the software and services
supplied by our vendors, although to date none of these errors or inadequacies has had a meaningful adverse impact
on our business. Any such errors or inadequacies that we may encounter in the future may result in substantial
interruptions to our services and may damage our relationships with, or cause us to lose, our Members if the errors or
inadequacies impair our ability to track sales and pay royalty overrides, bonuses and other incentives, which would
harm our financial condition and operating results. Such errors may be expensive or difficult to correct in a timely
manner, and we may have little or no control over whether any inadequacies in software or services supplied to us by
third parties are corrected, if at all.

Our ability to effectively manage our network of Members, and to ship products, and track royalty and bonus
payments on a timely basis, depends significantly on our information systems. The failure of our information systems
to operate effectively, or a breach in security of these systems, could adversely impact the promptness and accuracy of
our product distribution and transaction processing. We could be required to make significant additional expenditures
to remediate any such failure, problem or breach.

Anyone who is able to circumvent our security measures could misappropriate confidential or proprietary information,
including that of third parties such as our Members, cause interruption in our operations, damage our computers or
otherwise damage our reputation and business. We may need to expend significant resources to protect against
security breaches or to address problems caused by such breaches. Any actual security breaches could damage our
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reputation and expose us to a risk of loss or litigation and possible liability under various laws and regulations. In
addition, employee error or malfeasance or other errors in the storage, use or transmission of any such information
could result in a disclosure to third parties. If this should occur we could incur significant expenses addressing such
problems. Since we collect and store Member and vendor information, including credit card information, these risks
are heightened.

Since we rely on independent third parties for the manufacture and supply of certain of our products, if these third
parties fail to reliably supply products to us at required levels of quality and which are manufactured in compliance
with applicable laws, including the dietary supplement and OTC drug cGMPs, then our financial condition and
operating results would be harmed.

A substantial portion of our products are manufactured at third party contract manufacturers. We cannot assure you
that our outside contract manufacturers will continue to reliably supply products to us at the levels of quality, or the
quantities, we require, and in compliance with applicable laws, including under the FDA�s cGMP regulations and
while efforts are being made to ensure a smooth transition we cannot assure you that the transition from our third
party contract manufacturers to this new Herbalife facility will not result in possible inventory shortages. Additionally,
while we are not presently aware of any current liquidity issues with our suppliers, we cannot assure you that they will
not experience financial hardship as a result of the current global financial crisis.
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For the portion of our product supply that is self-manufactured, we believe we have significantly lowered the product
supply risk, as the risk factors of financial health, liquidity, capacity expansion, reliability and product quality are all
within our control. However, a significant delay in the full operationalization of the Winston-Salem Facility, while
unlikely, could hamper our ability to support the continued growth in net sales.

Our product supply contracts generally have a three-year term. Except for force majeure events such as natural
disasters and other acts of God, and non-performance by Herbalife, our manufacturers generally cannot unilaterally
terminate these contracts. These contracts can generally be extended by us at the end of the relevant time period and
we have exercised this right in the past. Globally we have approximately 50 product suppliers. For our major products,
we typically have both primary and secondary suppliers. Our major suppliers include Fine Foods (Italy) for meal
replacements, protein powders and nutritional supplements, Valentine Enterprises (U.S.) for meal replacements and
protein powders, Nature�s Bounty (U.S.) for meal replacements and nutritional supplements, and PharmaChem Labs
(U.S.) for teas and Niteworks®. Additionally we use contract manufacturers in India, Brazil, Korea, Japan, Taiwan and
Germany to support our global business. In the event any of our contract manufacturers were to become unable or
unwilling to continue to provide us with products in required volumes and at suitable quality levels, we would be
required to identify and obtain acceptable replacement manufacturing sources. There is no assurance that we would be
able to obtain alternative manufacturing sources on a timely basis. An extended interruption in the supply of products
would result in the loss of sales. In addition, any actual or perceived degradation of product quality as a result of
reliance on contract manufacturers may have an adverse effect on sales or result in increased product returns and
buybacks. Also, as we experience ingredient and product price pressure in the areas of soy, fructose, dairy products,
gums, plastics, and transportation reflecting global economic trends, we believe that we have the ability to mitigate
some of these cost increases through improved optimization of our supply chain coupled with select increases in the
retail prices of our products.

If we fail to protect our trademarks and tradenames, then our ability to compete could be negatively affected, which
would harm our financial condition and operating results.

The market for our products depends to a significant extent upon the goodwill associated with our trademark and
tradenames. We own, or have licenses to use, the material trademark and trade name rights used in connection with
the packaging, marketing and distribution of our products in the markets where those products are sold. Therefore,
trademark and trade name protection is important to our business. Although most of our trademarks are registered in
the United States and in certain foreign countries in which we operate, we may not be successful in asserting
trademark or trade name protection. In addition, the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect our intellectual
property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States. The loss or infringement of our trademarks or
tradenames could impair the goodwill associated with our brands and harm our reputation, which would harm our
financial condition and operating results.

Unlike in most of the other markets in which we operate, limited protection of intellectual property is available under
Chinese law. Accordingly, we face an increased risk in China that unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or
otherwise obtain or use our trademarks, copyrights, product formulations or other intellectual property. Further,
because Chinese commercial law is relatively undeveloped, we may have limited legal recourse in the event we
encounter significant difficulties with intellectual property theft or infringement. As a result, we cannot assure you
that we will be able to adequately protect our product formulations or other intellectual property.

We permit the limited use of our trademarks by our Members to assist them in marketing our products. It is possible
that doing so may increase the risk of unauthorized use or misuse of our trademarks in markets where their registration
status differs from that asserted by our Members, or they may be used in association with claims or products in a
manner not permitted under applicable laws and regulations. Were this to occur it is possible that this could diminish
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the value of these marks or otherwise impair our further use of these marks.

If our Members fail to comply with labeling laws, then our financial condition and operating results would be
harmed.

Although the physical labeling of our products is not within the control of our Members, our Members must
nevertheless advertise our products in compliance with the extensive regulations that exist in certain jurisdictions,
such as the United States, which considers product advertising to be labeling for regulatory purposes.

Our products are sold principally as foods, dietary supplements and cosmetics and are subject to rigorous FDA and
related legal regimens limiting the types of therapeutic claims that can be made for our products. The treatment or
cure of disease, for example, is not a permitted claim for these products. While we train our Members and attempt to
monitor our Members� marketing materials, we cannot ensure that all such materials comply with applicable
regulations, including bans on therapeutic claims. If our Members fail to comply with these restrictions, then we and
our Members could be subjected to claims, financial penalties, mandatory product recalls or relabeling requirements,
which could harm our financial condition and operating results. Although we expect that our responsibility for the
actions of our Members in such an instance would be dependent on a determination that we either controlled or
condoned a noncompliant advertising practice, there can be no assurance that we could not be held vicariously liable
for the actions of our Members.
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If our intellectual property is not adequate to provide us with a competitive advantage or to prevent competitors
from replicating our products, or if we infringe the intellectual property rights of others, then our financial
condition and operating results would be harmed.

Our future success and ability to compete depend upon our ability to timely produce innovative products and product
enhancements that motivate our Members and customers, which we attempt to protect under a combination of
copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions. However, our
products are generally not patented domestically or abroad, and the legal protections afforded by common law and
contractual proprietary rights in our products provide only limited protection and may be time-consuming and
expensive to enforce and/or maintain. Further, despite our efforts, we may be unable to prevent third parties from
infringing upon or misappropriating our proprietary rights or from independently developing non-infringing products
that are competitive with, equivalent to and/or superior to our products.

Monitoring infringement and/or misappropriation of intellectual property can be difficult and expensive, and we may
not be able to detect every infringement or misappropriation of our proprietary rights. Even if we do detect
infringement or misappropriation of our proprietary rights, litigation to enforce these rights could cause us to divert
financial and other resources away from our business operations. Further, the laws of some foreign countries do not
protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States.

Additionally, third parties may claim that products or marks that we have independently developed or which bear
certain of our trademarks infringe upon their intellectual property rights and there can be no assurance that one or
more of our products or marks will not be found to infringe upon third party intellectual property rights in the future.

Since one of our products constitutes a significant portion of our net sales, significant decreases in consumer
demand for this product or our failure to produce a suitable replacement should we cease offering it would harm
our financial condition and operating results.

For 2014, 2013 and 2012, our Formula 1 Healthy Meal, our best-selling product line, approximated 30% of our net
sales. If consumer demand for this product decreases significantly or we cease offering this product without a suitable
replacement, then our financial condition and operating results would be harmed.

If we lose the services of members of our senior management team, then our financial condition and operating
results could be harmed.

We depend on the continued services of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Michael O. Johnson, and our
current senior management team as they work closely with the senior Member leadership to create an environment of
inspiration, motivation and entrepreneurial business success. Although we have entered into employment agreements
with certain members of our senior management team, and do not believe that any of them are planning to leave or
retire in the near term, we cannot assure you that our senior managers will remain with us. The loss or departure of
any member of our senior management team could adversely impact our Member relations and operating results. If
any of these executives do not remain with us, our business could suffer. Also, the loss of key personnel, including our
regional and country managers, could negatively impact our ability to implement our business strategy, and our
continued success will also be dependent on our ability to retain existing, and attract additional, qualified personnel to
meet our needs. We currently do not maintain �key person� life insurance with respect to our senior management team.

The covenants in our existing indebtedness limit our discretion with respect to certain business matters, which
could limit our ability to pursue certain strategic objectives and in turn harm our financial condition and operating
results.

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 101



Our credit facility contains financial and operating covenants that restrict our and our subsidiaries� ability to, among
other things:

� pay dividends, redeem share capital or capital stock and make other restricted payments and investments;

� incur or guarantee additional debt;

� impose dividend or other distribution restrictions on our subsidiaries; and

� create liens on our and our subsidiaries� assets.
In addition, our credit facility requires us to meet certain financial ratios and financial conditions. Our ability to
comply with these covenants may be affected by events beyond our control, including prevailing economic, financial
and industry conditions. Failure to comply with these covenants could result in a default causing all amounts to
become due and payable under our credit facility, which is secured by substantially all of our domestic assets, against
which the lenders thereunder could proceed to foreclose.
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We may use from time to time a certain amount of cash in order to satisfy the obligations relating to our
convertible notes. The maturity or conversion of any of our convertible notes may adversely affect our financial
condition and operating results, which could adversely affect the amount or timing of future potential share
repurchases or the payment of dividends to our shareholders.

In February 2014, we issued convertible notes due 2019, or the Convertible Notes, in the aggregate principal amount
of $1.15 billion. At maturity, we will have to pay the holders of the Convertible Notes the full aggregate principal
amount of the Convertible Notes then outstanding.

Holders of our Convertible Notes may convert their notes at their option under the following circumstances: (i) during
any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending March 31, 2014, if the last reported sale price of
our common shares for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) in a period of 30 consecutive trading days
ending on, and including, the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter exceeds 130% of the
conversion price for the Convertible Notes on each applicable trading day; (ii) during the five business-day period
immediately after any five consecutive trading day period, or the measurement period, in which the trading price per
$1,000 principal amount of Convertible Notes for each trading day of that measurement period was less than 98% of
the product of the last reported sale price of our common shares and the conversion rate for the Convertible Notes for
each such day; or (iii) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events. On and after May 15, 2019, holders may
convert their Convertible Notes at any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances. The Convertible Notes are
net-share settled. If one or more holders elect to convert their Convertible Notes when conversion is permitted, we
could be required to make cash payments equal to the par amount of each Convertible Note, which could adversely
affect our liquidity. In addition, even if holders do not elect to convert their Convertible Notes, because our
Convertible Notes are net-share settled, we could be required under applicable accounting rules to reclassify all or a
portion of the outstanding principal of our Convertible Notes as a current rather than long-term liability, which could
result in a material reduction of our net working capital. The requirement to pay cash upon conversion of the
Convertible Notes or any adverse accounting treatment of the Convertible Notes may adversely affect our financial
condition and operating results, each of which could in turn adversely impact the amount or timing of future potential
share repurchases or the payment of dividends to our shareholders.

The conversion of any of the Convertible Notes into common shares could have a dilutive effect that could cause
our share price to go down.

The Convertible Notes, until May 15, 2019, are convertible into common shares only if specified conditions are met
and thereafter convertible at any time, at the option of the holder. We have reserved common shares for issuance upon
conversion of the Convertible Notes. Upon conversion, the principal amount is due in cash, and to the extent that the
conversion value exceeds the principal amount, the difference is due in common shares. While we have entered into
capped call transactions to effectively increase the conversion of the Convertible Notes and lessen the risk of dilution
to shareholders upon conversion, if the market price of our common shares, as measured under the terms of the capped
call transactions, exceeds the cap price of the capped call transactions, the number of our common shares we receive
upon exercise of the capped call transactions will be capped. In that case, there would be dilution in respect of our
common shares, because the number of our common shares or amounts of cash that we would owe upon conversion of
the Convertible Notes in excess of the principal amount of converted Convertible Notes would exceed the number of
common shares that we would be entitled to receive upon exercise of the capped call transactions, which would cause
a dilutive effect that could cause our share price to go down. If any or all of the Convertible Notes are converted into
common shares, our existing stockholders will experience immediate dilution of voting rights and our common share
price may decline. Furthermore, the perception that such dilution could occur may cause the market price of our
common shares to decline.
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The conversion rate for the Convertible Notes as of February 7, 2014, the date of issuance thereof, was 11.5908
common shares per $1,000 principal amount or a conversion price of approximately $86.28 per common share.
Because the conversion rate of the Convertible Notes adjusts upward upon the occurrence of certain events, such as a
dividend payment, our existing shareholders may experience more dilution if any or all of the Convertible Notes are
converted into common shares after the adjusted conversion rates became effective.

If we do not comply with transfer pricing, customs duties, VAT, and similar regulations, then we may be subjected
to additional taxes, duties, interest and penalties in material amounts, which could harm our financial condition
and operating results.

As a multinational corporation, in many countries including the United States we are subject to transfer pricing and
other tax regulations designed to ensure that our intercompany transactions are consummated at prices that have not
been manipulated to produce a desired tax result, that appropriate levels of income are reported as earned by our
United States or local entities, and that we are taxed appropriately on such transactions. In addition, our operations are
subject to regulations designed to ensure that appropriate levels of customs duties are assessed on the importation of
our products. We are currently subject to pending or proposed audits that are at various levels of review, assessment or
appeal in a number of jurisdictions involving transfer pricing issues, income taxes, customs duties, value added taxes,
withholding taxes, sales and use and other taxes and related interest and penalties in material amounts. In some
circumstances, additional taxes, interest and penalties have been assessed and we will be required to pay the
assessments or post surety, in order to challenge the assessments.

52

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 104



Table of Contents

The imposition of new taxes, even pass-through taxes such as VAT, could have an impact on our perceived product
pricing and will likely require that we increase prices in certain jurisdictions and therefore could have a potential
negative impact on our business and results of operations. We have reserved in the consolidated financial statements
an amount that we believe represents the most likely outcome of the resolution of these disputes, but if we are
incorrect in our assessment we may have to pay the full amount asserted which could potentially be material. Ultimate
resolution of these matters may take several years, and the outcome is uncertain. If the United States Internal Revenue
Service or the taxing authorities of any other jurisdiction were to successfully challenge our transfer pricing practices
or our positions regarding the payment of income taxes, customs duties, value added taxes, withholding taxes, sales
and use, and other taxes, we could become subject to higher taxes, we may determine it is necessary to raise prices in
certain jurisdictions accordingly and our revenue and earnings and our results of operations could be adversely
affected.

See Note 5, Contingencies, to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 of Part I of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information on contingencies relating to VAT and other related matters.

We could become a �controlled foreign corporation� for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We believe that we are currently not a �controlled foreign corporation� for U.S. federal income tax purposes. However,
this conclusion depends upon whether United States persons or entities who own 10% or more of the total combined
voting power (10% shareholders�) own in the aggregate more than 50% of (i) the total combined voting power, or
(ii) the total value of all our stock. In determining voting power, in addition to voting stock any special voting rights to
appoint directors, whether by law, agreement or other arrangement, may also be taken into account. For purposes of
applying the voting and value tests, certain constructive ownership rules apply, which attribute ownership among
certain family members and certain entities and their owners. These rules may also attribute ownership of our stock to
a person or entity that is entitled to acquire our stock pursuant to an option, such as the holders of our Convertible
Notes due August 15, 2019. These constructive ownership rules are very complex and their application to specific
circumstances is subject to uncertainty.

If we were to be or become a �controlled foreign corporation,� our 10% shareholders would be subject to special tax
treatment. Any shareholders who contemplate owning 10% or more of our outstanding shares (taking into account the
impact of any share repurchases we may undertake pursuant to share repurchase programs) are urged to consult with
their tax advisors with respect to the special rules applicable to 10% shareholders of controlled foreign corporations.

Changes in tax laws, treaties or regulations, or their interpretation could adversely affect us.

A change in applicable tax laws, treaties or regulations or their interpretation could result in a higher effective tax rate
on our worldwide earnings and such change could be significant to our financial results. Tax legislative proposals
intending to eliminate some perceived tax advantages of companies that have legal domiciles outside the U.S. but
have certain U.S. connections have repeatedly been introduced in the U.S. Congress. If these proposals are enacted,
the result would increase our effective tax rate and could have a material adverse effect on the Company�s financial
condition and results of operations.

We may be held responsible for certain taxes or assessments relating to the activities of our Members, which could
harm our financial condition and operating results.

Our Members are subject to taxation, and in some instances, legislation or governmental agencies impose an
obligation on us to collect taxes, such as value added taxes and social contributions, and to maintain appropriate
records. In addition, we are subject to the risk in some jurisdictions of being responsible for social security,
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withholding or other taxes with respect to payments to our Members. For example, as described further in Note 5,
Contingencies, in Brazil the Company received tax assessments from the authorities for withholding taxes, social
contributions, and related items in connection with payments made to Members in prior periods. In addition, in the
event that local laws and regulations or the interpretation of local laws and regulations change to require us to treat our
Members as employees, or that our Members are deemed by local regulatory authorities in one or more of the
jurisdictions in which we operate to be our employees rather than independent contractors under existing laws and
interpretations, we may be held responsible for social contributions, withholding and related taxes in those
jurisdictions, plus any related assessments and penalties, which could harm our financial condition and operating
results.

We may incur material product liability claims, which could increase our costs and harm our financial condition
and operating results.

Our ingestible products include vitamins, minerals and botanicals and other ingredients and are classified as foods or
dietary supplements and are not subject to pre-market regulatory approval in the United States. Our products could
contain contaminated substances, and some of our products contain some ingredients that do not have long histories of
human consumption. We rely upon published and unpublished safety information including clinical studies on
ingredients used in our products and conduct limited clinical studies on some key products but not all products.
Previously unknown adverse reactions resulting from human consumption of these ingredients could occur. As a
marketer of dietary and nutritional supplements and other products that are ingested by consumers or applied to their
bodies, we have been, and may again be, subjected to various product liability claims, including that the
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products contain contaminants, the products include inadequate instructions as to their uses, or the products include
inadequate warnings concerning side effects and interactions with other substances. It is possible that widespread
product liability claims could increase our costs, and adversely affect our revenues and operating income. Moreover,
liability claims arising from a serious adverse event may increase our costs through higher insurance premiums and
deductibles, and may make it more difficult to secure adequate insurance coverage in the future. In addition, our
product liability insurance may fail to cover future product liability claims, thereby requiring us to pay substantial
monetary damages and adversely affecting our business. Finally, given the higher level of self-insured retentions that
we have accepted under our current product liability insurance policies, which are as high as approximately $15
million, in certain cases we may be subject to the full amount of liability associated with any injuries, which could be
substantial.

Several years ago, a number of states restricted the sale of dietary supplements containing botanical sources of
ephedrine alkaloids and on February 6, 2004, the FDA banned the use of such ephedrine alkaloids. Until late 2002, we
had sold Thermojetics® original green herbal tablets, Thermojetics® green herbal tablets and Thermojetics® gold
herbal tablets, all of which contained ephedrine alkaloids. Accordingly, we run the risk of product liability claims
related to the ingestion of ephedrine alkaloids contained in those products. Currently, we have been named as a
defendant in product liability lawsuits seeking to link the ingestion of certain of the aforementioned products to
subsequent alleged medical problems suffered by plaintiffs. Although we believe that we have meritorious defenses to
the allegations contained in these lawsuits, and are vigorously defending these claims, there can be no assurance that
we will prevail in our defense of any or all of these matters.

Holders of our common shares may face difficulties in protecting their interests because we are incorporated under
Cayman Islands law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, by the
Companies Law, and the common law of the Cayman Islands. The rights of our shareholders and the fiduciary
responsibilities of our directors under Cayman Islands law are not as clearly established as under statutes or judicial
precedent in existence in jurisdictions in the United States. Therefore, shareholders may have more difficulty in
protecting their interests in the face of actions by our management or board of directors than would shareholders of a
corporation incorporated in a jurisdiction in the United States, due to the comparatively less developed nature of
Cayman Islands law in this area.

Shareholders of Cayman Islands exempted companies such as Herbalife have no general rights under Cayman Islands
law to inspect corporate records and accounts or to obtain copies of lists of our shareholders. Our directors have
discretion under our articles of association to determine whether or not, and under what conditions, our corporate
records may be inspected by our shareholders, but are not obliged to make them available to our shareholders. This
may make it more difficult for you to obtain the information needed to establish any facts necessary for a shareholder
motion or to solicit proxies from other shareholders in connection with a proxy contest.

A shareholder can bring a suit personally where its individual rights have been, or are about to be, infringed. Where an
action is brought to redress any loss or damage suffered by us, we would be the proper plaintiff, and a shareholder
could not ordinarily maintain an action on our behalf, except where it was permitted by the courts of the Cayman
Islands to proceed with a derivative action. Our Cayman Islands counsel, Maples and Calder, is not aware of any
reported decisions in relation to a derivative action brought in a Cayman Islands court.

Provisions of our articles of association and Cayman Islands corporate law may impede a takeover or make it more
difficult for shareholders to change the direction or management of the Company, which could reduce
shareholders� opportunity to influence management of the Company.
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Our articles of association permit our board of directors to issue preference shares from time to time, with such rights
and preferences as they consider appropriate. Our board of directors could authorize the issuance of preference shares
with terms and conditions and under circumstances that could have an effect of discouraging a takeover or other
transaction.

In addition, our articles of association contain certain other provisions which could have an effect of discouraging a
takeover or other transaction or preventing or making it more difficult for shareholders to change the direction or
management of our Company, including the inability of shareholders to act by written consent, a limitation on the
ability of shareholders to call special meetings of shareholders and advance notice provisions. As a result, our
shareholders may have less input into the management of our Company than they might otherwise have if these
provisions were not included in our articles of association.

The Cayman Islands have provisions under the Companies Law (2014 Revision) (the �Companies Law�) to facilitate
mergers and consolidations between Cayman Islands companies and non-Cayman Islands companies. These
provisions, contained within Part XVI of the Companies Law, are broadly similar to the merger provisions as provided
for under Delaware Law.

There are however a number of important differences that could impede a takeover. First, the threshold for approval of
the merger plan by shareholders is higher. The threshold is a special resolution of the shareholders (being 66 2/3% of
those present in person or by proxy and voting) together with such other authorization, if any, as may be specified in
the articles of association.
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Additionally, the consent of each holder of a fixed or floating security interest (in essence a documented security
interest as opposed to one arising by operation of law) is required to be obtained unless the Grand Court of the
Cayman Islands waives such requirement.

The merger provisions contained within Part XVI of the Companies Law do contain shareholder appraisal rights
similar to those provided for under Delaware law. Such rights are limited to a merger under Part XVI and do not apply
to schemes of arrangement as discussed below.

The Companies Law also contains separate statutory provisions that provide for the merger, reconstruction and
amalgamation of companies. These are commonly referred to in the Cayman Islands as �schemes of arrangement.�

The procedural and legal requirements necessary to consummate these transactions are more rigorous and take longer
to complete than the procedures typically required to consummate a merger in the United States. Under Cayman
Islands law and practice, a scheme of arrangement in relation to a solvent Cayman Islands company must be approved
at a shareholders� meeting by a majority of each class of the company�s shareholders who are present and voting (either
in person or by proxy) at such meeting. The shares voted in favor of the scheme of arrangement must also represent at
least 75% of the value of each relevant class of the company�s shareholders present and voting at the meeting. The
convening of these meetings and the terms of the amalgamation must also be sanctioned by the Grand Court of the
Cayman Islands. Although there is no requirement to seek the consent of the creditors of the parties involved in the
scheme of arrangement, the Grand Court typically seeks to ensure that the creditors have consented to the transfer of
their liabilities to the surviving entity or that the scheme of arrangement does not otherwise materially adversely affect
creditors� interests. Furthermore, the court will only approve a scheme of arrangement if it is satisfied that:

� the statutory provisions as to majority vote have been complied with;

� the shareholders who voted at the meeting in question fairly represent the relevant class of shareholders to
which they belong;

� the scheme of arrangement is such as a businessman would reasonably approve; and

� the scheme of arrangement is not one that would more properly be sanctioned under some other provision of
the Companies Law.

If the scheme of arrangement is approved, the dissenting shareholder would have no rights comparable to appraisal
rights, which would otherwise ordinarily be available to dissenting shareholders of U.S. corporations, providing rights
to receive payment in cash for the judicially determined value of the shares.

In addition, if an offer by a third party to purchase shares in us has been approved by the holders of at least 90% of our
outstanding shares (not including such a third party) pursuant to an offer within a four-month period of making such
an offer, the purchaser may, during the two months following expiration of the four-month period, require the holders
of the remaining shares to transfer their shares on the same terms on which the purchaser acquired the first 90% of our
outstanding shares. An objection can be made to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands, but this is unlikely to
succeed unless there is evidence of fraud, bad faith, collusion or inequitable treatment of the shareholders.
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There is uncertainty as to shareholders� ability to enforce certain foreign civil liabilities in the Cayman Islands.

We are incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands. A material
portion of our assets are located outside of the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for our shareholders to
enforce judgments against us or judgments obtained in U.S. courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the
federal securities laws of the United States or any state of the United States.

We have been advised by our Cayman Islands counsel, Maples and Calder, that although there is no statutory
enforcement in the Cayman Islands of judgments obtained in the United States, the courts of the Cayman Islands will �
based on the principle that a judgment by a competent foreign court imposes upon the judgment debtor an obligation
to pay the sum for which judgment has been given � recognize and enforce a foreign judgment of a court of competent
jurisdiction if such judgment is final, for a liquidated sum, not in respect of taxes or a fine or penalty, is not
inconsistent with a Cayman Islands judgment in respect of the same matters, and was not obtained in a manner, and is
not of a kind, the enforcement of which is contrary to natural justice or the public policy of the Cayman Islands. There
is doubt, however, as to whether the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands will (1) recognize or enforce judgments of
U.S. courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States or any state
of the United States, or (2) in original actions brought in the Cayman Islands, impose liabilities predicated upon the
civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States or any state of the United States, on the
grounds that such provisions are penal in nature.

The Grand Court of the Cayman Islands may stay proceedings if concurrent proceedings are being brought elsewhere.
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Our stock price may be adversely affected by third parties who raise allegations about our Company.

Short sellers and others who raise allegations regarding the legality of our business activities, some of whom are
positioned to profit if our stock declines, can negatively affect our stock price. In late 2012, a hedge fund manager
publicly raised allegations regarding the legality of our network marketing program and announced that his fund had
taken a significant short position regarding our common shares, leading to intense public scrutiny and significant stock
price volatility. Following this public announcement in December 2012, our stock price dropped significantly. This
hedge fund manager continues to make allegations regarding the legality of our network marketing program, our
product safety, our accounting practices and other matters. Additionally, from time to time the Company is subject to
governmental and regulatory inquiries and inquiries from legislators that may adversely affect our stock price. Our
stock price has continued to exhibit heightened volatility and the short interest in our common shares continues to
remain high. Short sellers expect to make a profit if our common shares decline in value, and their actions and their
public statements may cause further volatility in our share price. While a number of traders have publicly announced
that they have taken long positions contrary to the hedge fund shorting our shares, the existence of such a significant
short interest position and the related publicity may lead to continued volatility. The volatility of our stock may cause
the value of a shareholder�s investment to decline rapidly.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(a) None.

(b) None.

(c) During the three months ended March 31, 2015, we did not repurchase any of our common shares through open
market purchases. As of March 31, 2015, the remaining authorized capacity under our share repurchase program was
$232.9 million inclusive of reductions for the Forward Transactions. The Company�s share repurchase program will
expire on June 30, 2017.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

(a) On May 4, 2015, the Company amended its Credit Facility to extend the maturity date of its revolving credit
facility to March 9, 2017. The Term Loan will still mature on March 9, 2016. Pursuant to this amendment and upon
execution, the Company was required to make prepayments of approximately $20.3 million and $50.9 million on the
Term Loan and revolving credit facility, respectively. Additionally, the Company�s $700 million borrowing capacity
on its revolving credit facility was reduced by approximately $235.9 million upon execution of this amendment, and
will be further reduced by approximately $39.1 million on September 30, 2015, bringing the total expected available
borrowing capacity on its revolving credit facility to $425.0 million as of September 30, 2015. Until March 9, 2016,
the interest rates on the Company�s borrowings under the Credit Facility, as amended, will effectively remain
unchanged except that the minimum applicable margin will be increased by 0.50%. After March 9, 2016, the
applicable interest rates on the Company�s borrowings under the Credit Facility, as amended, will increase by 2.00%
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such that borrowings under the Credit Facility will bear interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin between
4.00% and 5.00% or the base rate plus the applicable margin between 3.00% and 4.00%. The Credit Facility, as
amended, also restricts the Company�s ability to pay dividends or repurchase its common shares to a maximum of
$233.0 million until maturity and also provides for the grant of security interest on certain additional assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The Company incurred approximately $7 million of debt issuance costs in connection
with the amendment.

(b) None.

Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibit Index:

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description Reference
    3.1 Form of Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of Herbalife

Ltd. *

    4.1 Form of Share Certificate (c) 

    4.2 Indenture between Herbalife Ltd. and Union Bank, N.A., as trustee, dated February 7,
2014, governing the 2.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2019 (m) 

    4.3 Form of Global Note for 2.00% Convertible Senior Note due 2019 (included as
Exhibit A to exhibit 4.2 hereto) (m) 
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Exhibit

Number Description Reference
  10.1# Herbalife International of America, Inc.�s Senior Executive Deferred Compensation

Plan, effective January 1, 1996, as amended (a) 

  10.2# Herbalife International of America, Inc.�s Management Deferred Compensation Plan,
effective January 1, 1996, as amended (a) 

  10.3# Herbalife International Inc. 401K Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, as amended (a) 

  10.4 Notice to Distributors regarding Amendment to Agreements of Distributorship, dated as
of July 18, 2002 between Herbalife International, Inc. and each Herbalife Distributor (a) 

  10.5# Side Letter Agreement dated as of April 3, 2003 by and among WH Holdings (Cayman
Islands) Ltd., Michael O. Johnson and the Shareholders listed therein (a) 

  10.6 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Herbalife Ltd. and the directors and
certain officers of Herbalife Ltd. (b) 

  10.7# Amended and Restated Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan *

  10.8# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement (h) 

  10.9# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award
Agreement (h) 

  10.10# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award
Agreement applicable to Michael O. Johnson (h) 

  10.11# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award
Agreement applicable to Richard P. Goudis (h) 

  10.12# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award
Agreement applicable to Mr. Michael O. Johnson (j) 

  10.13# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award
Agreement applicable to Richard Goudis (j) 

  10.14# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement (j) 

  10.15# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award
Agreement (j) 

  10.16# Herbalife Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (k) 

  10.17# Employment Agreement dated as of March 27, 2008 between Michael O. Johnson and
Herbalife International of America, Inc. (k) 

  10.18# Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement by and between Herbalife Ltd. and
Michael O. Johnson, dated March 27, 2008 (k) 

  10.19# Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement by and between Herbalife Ltd. and
Michael O. Johnson, dated March 27, 2008 (k) 

  10.20# Amendment to Herbalife International Inc. 401K Profit Sharing Plan and Trust (p) 

  10.21# Form of Independent Directors Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement *
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  10.22# Herbalife Ltd. Amended and Restated Independent Directors Deferred Compensation
and Stock Unit Plan *

  10.23# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Richard P. Goudis and
Herbalife International of America, Inc., dated as of January 1, 2010 (d) 

  10.24# First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and
between Richard P. Goudis and Herbalife International of America, Inc., dated as of
December 28, 2010 (f) 

  10.25# Amended and Restated Non-Management Directors Compensation Plan(e)

  10.26# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Employee Directors Stock
Appreciation Right Award Agreement (e) 

  10.27# Severance Agreement by and between John DeSimone and Herbalife International of
America, Inc., dated as of February 23, 2011 (g) 
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Exhibit

Number Description Reference
  10.28# Amended and Restated Severance Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2011, by

Desmond Walsh and Herbalife International of America, Inc. (g) 

  10.29 Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2011, by and among Herbalife International,
Inc. (�HII�), Herbalife Ltd., Herbalife International Luxembourg S.a.R.L., certain
subsidiaries of HII as guarantors, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank
of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer (h) 

  10.30 First Amendment, dated July 26, 2012, to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9,
2011, by and among Herbalife International, Inc. (�HII�), Herbalife Ltd., Herbalife
International Luxembourg S.a.R.L., certain subsidiaries of HII as guarantors, the
lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer (j) 

  10.31# Amendment to Amended and Restated Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (i) 

  10.32 Second Amendment, dated February 3, 2014, to Credit Agreement, dated as of
March 9, 2011, by and among Herbalife International, Inc. (�HII�), Herbalife Ltd.,
Herbalife International Luxembourg S.a.R.L., certain subsidiaries of HII as guarantors,
the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer (l) 

  10.33 Form of Forward Share Repurchase Confirmation (m) 

  10.34 Form of Base Capped Call Confirmation (m) 

  10.35 Form of Additional Capped Call Confirmation (m) 

  10.36# Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Condition Stock
Appreciation Right Award Agreement (m) 

  10.37 Amended and Restated Support Agreement, dated March 23, 2014, by and among
Herbalife Ltd., Carl C. Icahn, Icahn Partners Master Fund LP, Icahn Offshore LP,
Icahn Partners LP, Icahn Onshore LP, Beckton Corp., Hopper Investments LLC,
Barberry Corp., High River Limited Partnership, Icahn Capital LP, IPH GP LLC, Icahn
Enterprises Holdings LP, and Icahn Enterprises GP Inc. (n) 

  10.38# Herbalife Ltd. 2014 Stock Incentive Plan. (o) 

  10.39 Confirmation between Merrill Lynch International and Herbalife Ltd., dated May 6,
2014 (p) 

  10.40 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 4, 2015, among Herbalife
Ltd., Herbalife International, Inc., Herbalife International Luxembourg S.a.R.L., the
guarantors part thereto, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer. *

  31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer *

  31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer *

  32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer *
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101.INS XBRL Instance Document *

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document *

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document *

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document *

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *

* Filed herewith.
# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(a) Previously filed on October 1, 2004 as an Exhibit to the Company�s registration statement on Form S-1

(File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Previously filed on December 2, 2004 as an Exhibit to Amendment No. 4 to the Company�s registration

statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated herein by reference.

58

Edgar Filing: HERBALIFE LTD. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 116



Table of Contents

(c) Previously filed on December 14, 2004 as an Exhibit to Amendment No. 5 to the Company�s registration
statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Previously filed on June 17, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated
herein by reference.

(e) Previously filed on August 2, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2010 and is incorporated by reference.

(f) Previously filed on December 29, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K and is
incorporated herein by reference.

(g) Previously filed on March 1, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K and is
incorporated herein by reference.

(h) Previously filed on May 2, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2011 and is incorporated by reference.

(i) Previously filed on April 29, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K and is
incorporated herein by reference.

(j) Previously filed on July 30, 2012 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2012 and is incorporated herein by reference.

(k) Previously filed on April 29, 2013 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2013 and is incorporated herein by reference.

(l) Previously filed on February 7, 2014 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

(m) Previously filed on February 18, 2014 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and is incorporated by reference.

(n) Previously filed on March 24, 2014 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

(o) Previously filed on May 8, 2014 as an Exhibit to the Company�s registration statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-195798) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(p) Previously filed on July 28, 2014 as an Exhibit to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2014 and is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HERBALIFE LTD.

By: /s/ JOHN G. DESIMONE
John G. DeSimone

Chief Financial Officer
Dated: May 5, 2015
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